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Dear Synod Participant, 
 
Please find enclosed papers relating to the Second Session of the Fiftieth Synod of the 
Diocese of Armidale.  The session will be held in various hubs around the Diocese on 
Saturday, 26 September 2020. The hubs will be at Armidale Cathedral, Tamworth, 
Narrabri, Moree and Inverell, and the ‘Top Table’ will have a hub at the Armidale 
Registry. Your local archdeacon will be able to provide further information about 
your hub. 
 

Please bring these papers to your Synod hub and should you for any reason not be 
able to attend, please pass them on to the representative attending in your place. 
 

In this folder are: 
 -   the Bishop’s mandate summoning you to Synod; 
 -   the Synod program and timetable; 

-   Reports, draft Ordinances, Financial Statements and other Documents; and 
 -   the proposed Standing Orders of Synod (relating to the conduct of Synod). 

 

Those who require accommodation to attend their local hub will have to make their 
own arrangements. 
 
No catering will be provided. Please take care to provide your own refreshments. 
 
There will be no charge to synod members or parishes for this year’s synod. 
 
 

Please give serious thought to issues that you feel ought to be considered by Synod.  
Should you have not done so before now, please provide the text of any motion you wish 
to bring forward or question you may wish to ask to the Registrar at the earliest 
possible time, and most certainly before the commencement of the synod.  Please note 
that since this is a one day synod, the synod may not have time to consider all motions 
put before it. 
 
Given the limited time available, if you have any questions arising from the various 
synod reports or the financial statements and budget, it would be helpful if you could 
raise your question with me beforehand. 
 
Yours in the service of Christ, 
 

 
 
Christopher Pears 
REGISTRAR 
14 August 2020 
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SECOND SESSION OF THE FIFTIETH SYNOD 
 

PROGRAMME 
 

Saturday, 26 September 
 

9:00 am Synod commences in various hubs around the Diocese 

Acknowledgement of Country 

Standing Orders for the 2020 Synod 

Procedural Motions 

Petitions 

Notices of Questions 

Notices of Motions 

First Reading of Ordinances 

Call over of Motions 

Tabling of Reports 

Financial Report and Budget 

Second and Third Reading of Ordinances 

Motions 

4:00 pm Synod Concludes 

4:00 – 4:30 pm Prayer 

 

Morning Tea Break:  10:30 am 

Lunch Break:  12:30 am 

Afternoon Tea Break: 3:30 pm 

 

The Bishop’s Presidential Address will be included in the Synod papers, and will be available to 
view online from Friday 25 September 2020. 
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Bishop’s 2020 Presidential Address 

What does a Bishop say in his last presidential address before laying 

day his staff. 

The Apology  

There are things that could be spoken of that have frustrated and 

disappointed me but all reflect more negatively upon myself as the 

leader who could not achieve or whose personal approach, perhaps 

even lack of faith, proved me inadequate for the task.  

So I think it’s important for this departing Bishop to offer my deepest 

and most profound apology to all who I have sinned against whether 

in thought, or word, or deed. In my inadequacies I want to apologise 

to the victims and the marginalised of our diocese for whom I have 

failed adequately to empathise and see to your care. To those I have 

failed through poor decision making, to the clergy and parishes for 

whom I have not been sufficiently present in support when needed, 

for moments of legalism not grace, moments of laziness not diligent 

labour, moments of anger not love, moments of faithlessness not 

vision I ask your forgiveness.  

Some will be quick to offer forgiveness for which I am grateful. 

Others will bear grudges for which I will pray for your release.  

More importantly, to God I will carry all these things to his mercy 

seat trusting the redemptive work of Christ and all His promises. I 

pray that all the people of this Diocese will forever join me there with 

Christ for there is no other name under heaven by which we can be 

saved.1   

The Thanksgiving 

There are many achievements that one could rejoice in but in truth no 

achievement in ministry is in isolation from the contribution of others. 

There is much to be thankful for and too much for me to offer 

 
1 Acts 4:12 
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adequate thanks. To the silent benefactors, to BCA, CMS, the Sydney 

Diocese and the General Synod Office I offer my appreciation. 

I will not mention Diocesan names other than that of my wife, Janene, 

who is another of those undeserved gifts that God provides in 

ministry. Her prayerfulness, patience with the Bishop, ministry of 

hospitality, role in SRE and Safe Ministry, and partnership with the 

Christian women of this Diocese, in my view has been exemplary and 

I thank her for it.   

For more than eight years I have also enjoyed the partnership of 

registry staff, the clergy and the laity of this Diocese, a partnership for 

which I will forever be thankful.  

Every achievement over the past eight years is shared, and with 

Janene, I thank you for your works of faith, your labours of love, and 

your endurance of hope in our Lord Jesus Christ.2  

Self-congratulation is of course unbecoming of the Christian. As our 

Lord Jesus Christ reminded his disciples, “when you have done all 

that you were commanded, say, ‘We are unworthy servants; we have 

only done what was our duty.’” Our ministries spring from the 

undeserved grace of a salvation moment when Christ’s ministry saw 

Him bare our sins, promise forgiveness and establish our place in 

God’s family. Our ministry is enlivened by the Holy Spirit, our 

comforter and friend. Our ministry is by divine providence. To the 

Father, to the Son and to the Holy Spirit be praise forever and ever. 

2020 Vision  

For some years past, all across the world businesses, churches, 

individuals applied themselves to putting together a 2020 vision. It 

was for most a visions play on the expression, “2020 Vision”. If only 

we had 2020 vision when it comes to the future, but the future is not 

ours to control. Even the best laid plans could not have prepared our 

world, our churches or ourselves for pandemic closures, social 

distancing, travel restrictions, border closures, economic instability, 

 
2 1 Thessalonians 1:3 
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and fatalities. Add to this a nation coming out of drought, set ablaze in 

a blistering summer, and any vision seems inadequate for the days we 

currently live in.  

But the Christian’s vision is to never underestimate the vision of God 

and what God can do.  

Now that is a vision! 

In recent times we may have been disappointed, thinking that God, 

who is sovereign over all the affairs of people, would use a pandemic 

to bring people to repentance and faith. Never underestimate the 

vision of God and what God can do.  

In this moment of history upon which we stand some unchanging 

realities are before us:   

- God clothes himself in majesty offering the love and hope that is 

in His Son Jesus Christ to all who would receive Him by faith as 

Lord and Saviour;  

- By contrast humanity continues, from the fall of Adam, to clothe 

itself in the filthy rags of its own sinfulness destroying love and 

hope in its affair with unbelief;  

- In response God will glorify Himself in judgement or mercy 

Far from reaching out to God for help it would seem that, as in the 

days of the exodus, another pandemic has simply exposed the 

hardness of the human heart and the lawlessness familiar to all who 

understand the heart of sin with its rampant individualism.  

The refusals to isolate, the careless indifference of party goers, the 

street marching anarchists, the make a name for themselves 

opportunists, the blamers and the complainers are all indicative of the 

godless individualism of people who are a law unto themselves. Not 

surprisingly evil takes its opportunity and faith, hope and love become 

casualties.  

But the Christian must never underestimates what God can do. 
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It is into this sad and sin sickened culture that God’s church and the 

Christians who make up this extraordinary gathering, enter in to our 

world as Christ did with an agenda to rebuild faith, offer hope and 

show love for the healing of a nation and world. 

As a Diocese, our 2020 vision was for it to be a year of focused 

evangelism. Were our plans thwarted or is it possible that God did 

more than we could ask or imagine? There is no better evangelist than 

God, Himself. In the providence of God it could be argued that never 

in our country’s history was the teaching of the Bible more accessible 

to those in our communities. For those who have ears to hear the 

Gospel is readily available.  

The rising of our churches to the challenge of closures has been 

nothing short of spectacular. Clergy and people have not been undone 

by the crisis but have found ways in our modern world to keep God’s 

people in fellowship around the Word of God and to invite the lost to 

join in.  

I have nothing but admiration for the leaders of our Diocesan 

churches.  

I have nothing but appreciation for the parishioners who faithfully 

supported their local church, gathering, be it in unusual ways, to build 

each other up and spur one another on in love and good deed while 

we await the Lord’s return. 

As Christians we must never underestimates what God can do. 

The Vision Without Limits 

2020 Vision statements may have hoped for many things but our 

Diocesan Vision is timeless this side of heaven with eternal 

implications. Introducing people to Jesus and helping them home to 

heaven is the task of this Diocese irrespective of who the Bishop is.  

This vision may be expressed in different words but it has no date 

stamp and its expiry date is determined by the one, in whose hands is 

all time.  
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This is a vision unaffected by pandemic or protest. It’s a vision not 

geographically bound. It’s the vision for a groaning environment’s 

redemption. It’s the vision of God for the deliverance of all lives that 

matter to Him. It’s the vision protest of the cross where the glory of 

God matters to His Son, Jesus Christ, and where the souls of men and 

women matter to God.  

It’s the vision of cost, beyond which there is none greater, where no 

sacrifice has been more important and where the placard above His 

thorn crowned head reads, “This is the King of the Jews”.  

This is the vision of God amidst the howling down visions of men. 

Earth bound, sin enslaved visions all silenced by Christ’s resurrection 

in the past and to be silenced into our future by His coming again with 

his holy angels.  

This is the vision of Jesus Christ who is, “the Alpha and Omega, the 

one who is, who was and who is coming, the Almighty.” It’s the 

vision of “the one who was dead but who is alive forever and in 

whose hands are the keys of death and Hades.”3 

This is the vision of the Christian who never underestimates God.  

Consider our vision of God! From where is such a vision drawn?  

The Visionary Word  

God has spoken! 

The following are words attributed to the Poet, John Clifford. 

“Last eve I paused beside the blacksmith’s door, 

And heard the anvil ring the vesper chime; 

Then looking in, I saw upon the floor, 

Old hammers, worn with beating years of time. 

“‘How many anvils have you had,’ said I, 

‘To wear and batter all these hammers so?’ 

 
3 Revelation 1:8,17-18 
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‘Just one,’ said he, and then with twinkling eye, 

‘The anvil wears the hammers out, you know.’ 

“And so, I thought, the Anvil of God’s Word 

For ages skeptic blows have beat upon; 

Yet, though the noise of falling blows was heard, 

The Anvil is unharmed, the hammers gone.” 

The Christian never underestimates God’s Word because unlike us 

God is His Word – what he says he is. 

I will not be a speaker at this Diocese’ electoral synod in December so 

I will take this opportunity to influence any future voting.  I wish to 

advise the Synod responsible for electing a new Bishop of what is 

central to the role of Bishop. And I want to remind any future Bishop 

of the centrality of their task.  

A Bishop has an enormously important and crucial job to do. Some 

within the church may hate him for being so committed to it. He may 

even fight with wolves in Christian dress to fulfil it. He must always 

remember that his job is not given by the Diocese who votes but the 

God in whose providence he is appointed. His accountability is not 

ultimately to a synod but to God before whom he must one day give 

account. He stand among all ministers of God word as one who will 

judged with harsher judgement. His job… to teach God’s Word.  

Listen to these moments in a Bishop’s consecration:  

He is asked, 

“Are you convinced that the Holy Scriptures contain all doctrine 

required of necessity for eternal salvation through faith in Jesus 

Christ? And will you instruct people committed to your care from the 

Scriptures, and teach nothing (as required of necessity for eternal 

salvation) except what you are convinced may be proved by the 

Scriptures? 

He responds, 

 I am convinced, and will do so, by God’s grace. 
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He is asked, 

Will you then study the Scriptures and pray for a true understanding 

of them so that you may be able to teach and exhort with sound 

doctrine, and be able to withstand and convince those who speak 

against them? 

He responds, 

I will do so, by the help of God 

He is asked,  

Are you ready to drive away all false and strange doctrine which is 

contrary to God’s Word; and privately and publically to call upon and 

encourage others to do likewise? 

He responds, 

I am, the Lord being my helper.” 

The Christian never underestimates God’s Word – our salvation 

depends on God’s Word. It is the anvil upon which we are shaped. 

The Holy Scriptures are not ours to interpret. They are God’s word 

that demand we seek understanding. We sit not over God’s Word in 

pride but humbly under it for our sanctification. We tolerate no 

pretenders but by this Word of God we drive away the false.  

Visions in Conflict  

The Apostle Paul wrote, “in the last days there will come times of 

difficulty. 2 For people will be lovers of self, lovers of 

money, proud, arrogant, abusive, disobedient to their parents, 

ungrateful, unholy, 3 heartless, unappeasable, slanderous, without self-

control, brutal, not loving good, 4 treacherous, reckless, swollen with 

conceit, lovers of pleasure rather than lovers of God, 5 having the 

appearance of godliness, but denying its power. Avoid such people.”4 

4 2 Timothy 3:1-5 
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These words for the “last days” seem apt description of the visions of 

our age. A world with its sin addicted visions that beat against God’s 

word in relentless rebellion to their poverty. 

The Apostle also warned, “the time is coming when people will not 

endure sound[a] teaching, but having itching ears they will 

accumulate for themselves teachers to suit their own passions and 

will turn away from listening to the truth and wander off into myths.”5 

Here is the vision of a people who seek a message to suit themselves 

and of messengers who will accommodate their visions. Messengers 

who will seek to beat the anvil into the likeness of themselves or the 

listener for gain but without success. 

Never underestimates God’s Word. The only hope is for us to 

surrender to it and be shaped by it. 

The vision of God for this Diocese will only survive if we remain 

committed to the same charge that Paul gave Timothy. The same 

charge assumed in all our Anglican formularies. The same charge 

every ordinand is given in this Diocese. The same charge given to 

past Bishops and essential to any new Bishop  

I charge you in the presence of God and of Christ Jesus, who is to 

judge the living and the dead, and by his appearing and his 

kingdom: 2 preach the word; be ready in season and out of 

season; reprove, rebuke, and exhort, with complete patience and 

teaching.6 

Conclusion 

I have not spent much time in this Synod charge speaking of drought, 

fire or pandemic. I have tried not to spend time reflecting on my time 

as Bishop. That time is drawing to the close and God will be its judge. 

I have not noted the efforts of individuals or even the names of 

brothers and sisters who have gone to the Lord since last we met. 

5 2 Timothy 4:3 
6 2 Timothy 4:1-2 
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Other reports can speak to our diocesan activities.  

In this my final presidential speech my prayer is that you never 

underestimate God- Father Son and Holy Spirit, that you will remain 

faithful to his unchanging and eternal word, growing in faith, inspired 

by hope and active in love as you seek to introduce people to Jesus 

and help them home to heaven. This has been my vision and will not 

change as I take up ministry in the parish of Shoalhaven Heads.  

Thank you again for your partnership in the Gospel and for your 

consideration of the surpassing worth of Jesus Christ for whom you 

have and will sacrifice all.  

Brothers and sisters, as children of the risen Christ be steadfast, 

immovable, always excelling in the Lord’s work, knowing that your 

labour in the Lord is not in vain.7 

Never tolerate or entertain a vision that underestimates the God and 

Father of our Lord Jesus Christ! 

Thank you for the privilege of being your Bishop. 

 
7 1 Corinthians 15:58 
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Calrossy Anglican School 2020 Synod Report 
 
Following 2019 as a successful and memorable Centenary Year, 2020 was anticipated to be an 
exciting period for Calrossy Anglican School, in preparation for a major structural change to the 
school. In 2021 our unique ‘Diamond Model’ is to be further consolidated.  Calrossy is developing 
new custom-made campus environments for Secondary school students. On the William Cowper 
Campus it will see newly established facilities and structures introduced to suit Years 7 – 9 students, 
taught in single sex classes but located together. Our heritage Brisbane Street Campus will become 
home to a Senior centre to uniquely cater to the needs for Years 10 – 12, boys and girls learning 
together. (The Infants/Primary section of Calrossy remains on the William Cowper Campus.) The 
change is being made to reduce student travel and consolidate Secondary boys and girls of the same 
stage onto their own campus. 
 
Calrossy is undertaking this change to promote success at every stage of the educational journey, 
whether it be in Primary, early Secondary school or the final senior years. Underpinning the 
development is a strong focus on developing courageous students through the early adolescent 
stage, making learning relevant and meaningful at this stage to develop students as confident 
learners in the company of their own gender. The focus of the Senior years remains on equipping 
students in a coeducational context, to be equipped and prepared for the outside world of study, 
work and citizenship. 
 
The refinement in school structure is supported through construction of a multi-purpose classroom 
facility on the William Cowper Campus and other custom-designed developments. At the same time, 
the school has also commenced significant upgrading of classroom and boarding facilities on each of 
our campuses. 
 
The Centenary in 2019 was a marvellous ‘Year of Celebration’, during which we recognised 100 years 
of quality education at Calrossy. We appropriately gave thanks for God’s goodness in sustaining the 
school over the past 100 years and shaping the current reality. We acknowledged the faithful 
witness to the gospel of Jesus Christ, our foundation. We were also thankful for those who have led, 
governed and sustained Calrossy, keeping the focus on what was most important. As we move on 
from our Centenary, our prayer remains that our heavenly father will continue to guide our future, 
keeping our eyes focussed on him and on what is most important in learning and growth for our 
students. 
 
The Centenary reminded us how our history has moulded us. Firstly, it affirmed our identity and 
helped us to understand who we are as a contemporary school, shaped by our past. We heard great 
tales from the women and (more recently) men who attended, worked here and kept the school 
growing and developing over the years. Part of the early ethos, when the school was small and times 
were tough, was that it was ‘all in’ for everyone. Our current identity has been shaped by that 
experience, developing the current character and shaping our ethos. We remain inclusive and ‘all in’ 
and the general attitude is very much, “Give everything a go and do your best!” 
 
A second reminder was that school history is not so much about events and dates but people. From 
inception our school has been a relational place and the teachers, students and experiences with 
them are what are most poignantly remembered. Our focus has always been on growing great 
people to make a difference. One of the highlights for me was to hear of the caring and talented 
teachers who shaped the culture and changed lives, making an incredible difference to the students 
in the school’s care. That many of these teachers were followers of Jesus is significant. 
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A third helpful reminder of our Centenary is that whilst that our world has changed, the 
underpinning values are just as important as ever. Communication and learning have changed, and 
school is different for current students than what it was for their parents. However, amidst change, 
the values that helped establish the school and the central nature of the Gospel as being integral to 
life are just as important today as ever. Also vital is the explicit goal of shaping individual character, 
to the glory of God. 
 
The Centenary reminded us that many of the values used to set up the school (in its different parts) 
are still embedded today. Right from the start the focus was on caring and catering for the 
individual, looking out for each other and helping others to grow. The values of Selflessness, 
Integrity, Inclusiveness and Resilience reflect our Christian foundation and the example set by Jesus 
for faith to be lived out. 
 
Our whole history reflects resilience, under God’s sovereignty. The school itself and students have 
bounced through the hard and good times to ultimately succeed and achieve, something for which 
we benefit today. It is very much built into our regional/rural culture, to be resilient and learn and 
grow from the hard and tough times. Our history shows that with the right focus and support we can 
get through the difficulties of life and ultimately grow. Resilience is based on hope, that God knows 
our challenges and is in control. 
 
During our Centenary year, our region encountered what was termed as the worst drought in our 
region since records commenced. The effect of the drought was devastating on some of the school 
families, affecting incomes and family circumstances. The local economy was also affected, and 
general optimism was down. I was pleased that our Chaplaincy team led the school community in 
prayer for rain, holding several open events and proactively engaging with the students, who in 
varying degrees were affected by the context at home or in their parents’ businesses. Being a 
‘community of hope’ was an important role played by the school, supporting our students but also 
pointing to the ‘giver’ of rain, who sustains us through the good and bad. Calrossy too was impacted 
by the drought and we saw families leave the local district. Boarder numbers have been slightly 
down as a result. We were pleased to be able to provide drought relief funding to some of our 
families in great need, provided by both the Federal Government and some generous donors. 
 
Our 2019 HSC results were once again outstanding, placing us highly in the local and state rankings. 
We were delighted that one of our students achieved the top ATAR in New England North-West, 
another came first in NSW in Primary Industries and two others achieved second in state results. Our 
top band rankings were the highest in the region, across 16 subjects demonstrating the quality of 
teaching and learning across a wide range of subject areas. Pleasingly the improvement scores and 
achievements of other students were also impressive, achieving University placement and job entry 
to our students. Academically, the school achievements remain very strong. 
 
Whilst academic excellence is an central pillar of the school’s success, much more important is the 
school’s mission to develop Christian community, to challenge students to personally respond to the 
gospel message and to develop a student outlook that is focussed on service to others and the 
community around, using their gifts and talents to serve.  
 
One notable development was that at the commencement of 2020 the school rebranded the 
Centenary crest as the official school symbol. It combines the various elements of the different parts 
of the school during its history: 
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• The bishop’s mitre at the top is from the traditional Tamworth Church of England Girls 

School, signifying the role of the Diocese of Armidale in the school. The Bible on the top right 

represents the primacy of God’s word and its importance. 

• The copperplate Calrossy writing was first adopted in the late 1960s when Calrossy formally 

become the name of the school. The Thistle on the bottom left is a symbol of the legacy of 

the Paterson family, whose Scottish property gave Calrossy its name.  

• The white cross, signifying the risen Jesus, comes from the original William Cowper school 

crest. 

• The dove represents God’s peace, adopted from William Cowper Anglican Primary. 

• The Wyvern (sometimes called Gryphon or Dragon) became synonymous with the William 

Cowper Anglican Secondary Boys School in the formative years. 

• The motto “Light and Life” was adopted by the school upon the amalgamation of the various 

sections of the school in 2005. 

 
 

“Jesus Christ is the same yesterday and today and forever.” Hebrews 13:8 
 
As alluded to earlier, the shift into 2020 has seen much focus on preparation for 2021. The ‘winds of 
change’ have caused some uncertainty as we continue with plans to cater to quality learning for 
students differently through our 2021 structure. A new $4.65 building is being constructed, and 
significant upgrades are being made to classrooms and boarding facilities. A new whole-school 
House structure is being designed with the support of students. New staff are to be appointed to 
lead each new campus and much planning is underway to ensure a strong start to the new look of 
the Secondary school. 
 
Funding of non-Government schools has been a controversial topic in recent years, though the 
current health crisis has meant less prominence to the latest developments. A new measure of 
parent income (DMI), used to determine school SES and parent capacity to pay, has been legislated 
by the Federal Government. Whilst the aim is equity and fairness across all systems, those most 
detrimentally affected by the new system are regional boarding schools. Despite questions around 
the validity of the methodology used or the fact that millions are being shifted from independent 
schools to the Catholic sector and outer metropolitan low fee schools, it will be a challenge for 
schools like Calrossy to continue to provide quality education with lower government support, whilst 
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remaining affordable to both day and boarding families. Some support in transition to decreased 
funding will be provided by the Federal Government but this remains an issue. 
 
On funding, Calrossy suffered a significant loss of revenue in early 2020 because of the pandemic. 
Boarders were restricted from residence for over a month, many students opted to learn from home 
and excursions, sports, camps and activities were curtailed due to health regulations. We did not 
charge for services not offered and as a result, the school qualified for six months of JobKeeper 
payments. This meant that all staff were able to maintain their employment and that school services 
continued to be provided, through financial agility from our management. 
 
A positive from the pandemic was the way the teachers and staff of Calrossy collaborated closely, 
working with Board and Executive, to provide outstanding education during a trying time. We 
experienced a smooth transition to remote learning, being fortunate that we had prepared in 
advance for the eventuality, built on our new eCalrossy proposal, to provide learning for future 
students remotely. Staff reported how much more tiring and challenging the role of teaching was 
during this time. During this period, the prayers of the community were gratefully appreciated. The 
tireless work of some Board members and especially the school Executive to remain agile and 
respond to the quickly changing environment must be acknowledged. 
 
Calrossy always remained open for learning, providing onsite lessons for the children of those in 
‘essential services’ at all times during the pandemic. Most days we had between 30 and 60 students 
physically present. Flexibility was provided to staff who were rostered to supervise students on 
campus and work from home, online when able to do so.  
 
It was delightful to receive positive feedback from parents and the community on the positive 
communication Calrossy provided, the way students were supported, and the seamless way learning 
continued during the peak of the crisis. The volume of feedback received from parents reflected that 
our online learning experience, whilst not perfect for every child, was very good. 
 
An unrelated but positive development of 2020 is that North Tamworth Anglican Church 
commenced operation, meeting in Calrossy facilities on the William Cowper Campus, adjacent to the 
new property. The launch was somewhat disrupted by the meeting restrictions issued by the NSW 
Government but already a partnership is developing, with the Rev. Scott Dunlop taking an interest in 
school activities, being visible at relevant events. With the return to regular church attendance 
following Covid-safe regulations, this partnership is set to continue. 
 
Our school theme for 2020 was selected as the Year of Seeing Life Clearly (using 20/20 vision). It is 
somewhat ironic that the emergence of Covid-19 and its impact on our society has become a major 
theme of the year. Helpfully, it has provided a context in which to reflect on what is most important 
in life. Despite the challenges of lockdown, boarders going home, uncertainty about infection and 
anxiety around what were rapidly changing rules and requirements, there have been many 
opportunities to minister to the community and speak of the hope we have in him who does not 
change. I am pleased to report that our Chaplaincy team was proactive during the lockdown and 
amidst the restrictions, leading the community in creative and diverse ways. Chapel TV provided 
online messages, which were engaging, relevant and powerful. Thanking God for the rain this year, 
acknowledging the uncertainty and supporting the wellbeing of students, both physically and 
spiritually, were undertaken in a constructive manner. Aspects of the wellbeing program in the 
school have been led by Rev. Stephen Price and his team, cementing and reinforcing the important 
role that the Chaplains, Chapel and Christian Studies play in the life of the school. It was a period 
when this part of the school stood up to be relevant and closely connected to the heart of holistic 
education. 
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We have been pleased to be part of the Association of Independent Schools project on Improving 
Indigenous Outcomes, committed to supporting the school progress of our Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait islander students. Involvement of boarders with the Hillvue Public School Breakfast Club in 
partnership with St Peter’s Church, in-school mentoring and the participation in school events of 
some Christian Indigenous locals supplemented this work, which we plan to grow and expand. 
 
During the bushfire crisis which spanned late last year and the beginning of this year, we observed 
wonderful examples of generosity of spirit. This was pre-eminent in the magnificent response of the 
Rural Fire Service volunteers and other firefighters and paramedics. Their selflessness was evident to 
all. This example was used in the school context. 

Similarly, late in April, after the restrictions of the pandemic had come into play, we commemorated 
the ANZAC spirit online, noting sacrifice, mateship, loyalty and courage. Our school captains set the 
example of students standing at dawn in their driveways. Some powerful images were shared across 
the school community.  

The reality of Covid-19 has had some commentators and Dr John Collier (Principal of St Andrew’s 
Cathedral School) writing that “the social glue which holds the community together has melted in 
recent decades with the onset of individualism in the West. Sociologists and historians have traced 
this shift. One such study is the landmark work by Larry Siedentop – Inventing the individual. Perhaps 
therefore such demonstrable instances to the contrary, such as the heroics of our ‘fireys’ and the 
ANZACS are so remarkable.” 

In the current context it is suggested that schools are replacing other institutions as vital hubs in our 
community and so the role they play is more prominent. (Though not biblical, some argue the reality 
that Christian schools are replacing church.) If we are just individuals existing for reasons of self-
advancement, and thereby in conflict with all other individuals attempting to do the same, the 
landscape is competitive and lonely. A better way is to see schools as part of a mutually supportive 
community. This is part of the genius of a school. We develop a sense of community, where people 
belong, and where they are valued for who they are, and not just instrumentally. God made us for 
community.  

Part of the ethos of Calrossy is to teach students to serve. Service is built on the biblical presumption 
that other people matter. It implies that we must seek to contribute meaningfully to the community. 
Our students do this in all kinds of ways. This plays into our school mission, which is that we aspire, 
with parents, to grow young people of character and substance who can contribute to the world. It 
gels with our academic programs, which offer a graduation capacity, platform and pathway into 
further study and work which we pray will equip students to live a life of fullness where they assist in 
human flourishing; their own, and that of other people. We don’t replace church, but we work 
alongside. 
 
As much as we admire the RFS, and rightly so, the ultimate is Jesus who said: “Greater love has no 
one than this: to lay down one’s life for one’s friends.” – John 15:13. This verse has much wider 
application than ANZAC Day, in Jesus’ sacrificial death for humankind.  

As more and more students have physically been back at school, they have been heard to say: ‘we 
have missed school’. They have also said what staff felt they would never hear, ‘We have missed 
you’.  Our staff certainly missed them!  

At the time of writing this Synod report, I have not idea how the pandemic may yet affect our school 
and our local community. There have been challenges to the wellbeing of both students and staff, 
and this has stretched the resources of Calrossy. The long-term impact is yet to be identified, though 
a return to more normal operation has been a pleasing occurrence. We continue to pray for wisdom 
and guidance on the matter. 
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I would like to acknowledge the work of the School Board and committee volunteers, who give their 
time generously to support Calrossy. It is also appropriate to acknowledge the contribution of Bishop 
Rick Lewers, who has been a great friend to the school over the past eight years. We wish him and 
Janine all of God’s richest blessing as he returns to parish ministry on the NSW South Coast. 

 

David Smith 
Principal 
M.A.; B. Ed (Distinction); Dip. Teach; MACE; MACEL; MAICD 
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Calrossy Anglican School Chaplain’s Synod Report 2020 

 

Each year at Calrossy, we have a theme. Often, they will be centred around a Christian virtue, like 
humility or wisdom. The idea for 2020, which was arranged in around October last year is similar 
to the Diocesan mission; it is “Seeing Life Clearly”. The notion was that because of 2020 vision, it 
would be a time to look to the ultimate source of life, Jesus, and thus be able to see life as it is 
meant to be lived. 
 
In hindsight, it seems quite remarkable when you think about it. The year of seeing life clearly, 
amidst all that has happened this year. Beginning with the flow on effects from drought, to bush 
fires that were lingering in January, to the utter upheaval of COVID-19. The year 2020 at Calrossy 
(and indeed across the globe) has truly been a time to reflect and see life clearly. At Calrossy it has 
meant trying different things in a whole range of areas, not least of which has been in chaplaincy. 
In the early stages of COVID restrictions, we had a daily chapel TV that was viewed by many 
students and families. Our chapel prefects took on the role of providing weekly devotions for the 
students who usually attend voluntary lunchtime groups. Chaplain’s Café regularly operated, 
providing the staff with some hospitality amidst such a difficult season. John Lenox’s book “Where 
is God in a Coronavirus world?” were also given out to staff. 
 
While it certainly has been an interesting season for many, in school, it has been one remarkable 
ride. It has highlighted for us the need for so many students, staff and parents to ask the big 
questions of life. And we have sought wherever possible to help students to find the answer these 
questions in the person and work of the Lord Jesus. I am so thankful for the school board and 
executive team that are all centred on this same purpose. It is a blessing. It has also been of great 
encouragement this year to see more of the chaplaincy work in our primary and I have asked our 
Primary school chaplain Leonie Collins to share a bit of her reflection on 2020. 
 
Mrs. Leonie Collins, Primary Chaplain  
We began the year considering the idea that ‘Seeing life clearly’ is about having direction, meaning 
and purpose in your life. I also challenged the students with the question, ‘How can we maintain 
our direction, meaning and purpose when things happen in our lives that blur our vision or 
obstruct our view?’ 
I was able to share how thankful I am to be a friend of Jesus and connected to a GPS – that is 
God’s Positioning System. Knowing that whatever happens, my final destination is in heaven, with 
Jesus, for all eternity. (Direction) In the meantime, I live my life knowing that, come what may, 
God will never leave me, and He can and will use every situation to help me to grow to become 
more like Jesus. (Meaning) God’s word, the Bible with the help of the Holy Spirit, will guide me and 
help me to understand His purpose for my life so I can live life well, to the Glory of God. (Purpose) 
It wasn’t too long after I spoke these words that we were hit with a change of global pandemic 
proportions. A change that would thoroughly obstruct our view of the immediate future.   
Fast forward to Term 3, and we have been presented with a beautiful opportunity to talk about 
‘Seeing Life Clearly’ amid change; the way change impacts our lives and how we can find stability 
and clarity when it feels like everything around us is changing. 
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What a joy to be able to reassure staff and students that, ‘Jesus Christ is the same yesterday, 
today, and forever.’ Hebrews 13:8 
Seeing life clearly with our own eyes can be problematic because things around us change. But 
God never changes. He sees us, He loves us, and He knows what is best for us.  
When we trust and follow Jesus, we can know our direction, meaning and purpose and copy His 
perfect example of how to live as we obey His commands in the Bible. Psalm 18:30-32 helpfully 
reminds us that, ‘God’s way is perfect. The Lord’s promise always proves to be true. He protects 
those who trust in him. 31 There is no God except the Lord. There is no Rock except our God. 32 
God is the one who gives me strength. He clears the path I need to take.’ God’s way is ‘perfect’, 
and we can see life clearly through His eyes, even in a world of change. My Key Bible verse for this 
year in the context of Seeing Life Clearly has been, Micah 6:8 The Lord has told you what is good. 
He has told you what he wants from you: Do what is right for other people. Love being kind to 
others. And live humbly, trusting your God.  
 
Thank you, Leonie, for these insights. Once again, I am thankful that Calrossy continues to develop 
an even stronger quality Christian education. I am grateful for the Christian families who send 
their students to us and pray that we would continue to be a place where those students would be 
encouraged. And I am thankful for the many students who come to us and experience the gospel 
in word and deed at Calrossy. We continue to value your prayers that many more may be saved. 
Thank you for your support. 
 

Rev. Stephen Price 

Chaplain 
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The	Armidale	School	
2020	

Synod	Report	
		
The	past	year	has	again	been	exciting	and	encouraging	as	we	witness	the	work	of	our	
gracious	Lord	calling	our	young	and	increasingly,	older	people	to	repentance	and	faith,	
our	chief	aim	being	to	introduce	Christ	to	people	and	disciple	those	who	have	already	
come	to	Christ.	
		
One	of	the	most	exciting	aspects	of	our	ministry	at	TAS	would	be	the	involvement,	
growth	and	development	of	our	student	leaders.	Again,	God’s	faithfulness	cannot	be	
missed,	some	years	are	lean	in	terms	of	the	student	Christian	presence	within	the	
school.	However,	recently,	there	have	been	a	number	of	students	across	the	ages,	both	
boys	and	girls	who	have	demonstrated	their	interest	in	starting	or	helping	to	maintain	
some	sort	of	voluntary	Bible	study	or	lunch	time	group.	Our	attempt	is	to	equip	them	for	
the	task	as	well	as	possible	via	weekly	meetings	and	Leadership	Training	
Camp	subsidies.	Many	of	our	voluntary	groups	will	be	student	run	by	the	end	of	the	
year.	They	will	prepare	talks	and	give	them,	run	games	and	prepare	the	programs.	This	
is	a	big	commitment	on	their	part.	They	give	up	lunchtimes	for	the	groups	and	another	
break	to	spend	time	planning	and	preparing,	critiquing	talks	and	gaining	training.			
This	year	our	broadest	Bible	Study	group	moved	from	a	lunch	time	during	school	hours	
back	to	a	Friday	morning	breakfast.	This	was	done	to	make	it	easier	for	students	who	
have	so	many	commitments	during	the	day	to	be	more	consistent,	this	too,	has	been	a	
most	encouraging	time	as	we	open	God’s	word	together.	In	a	couple	of	weeks	from	
writing	this	report	we	will	commence	a	Christianity	Explained	Course	for	interested	
students	in	this	time	and	driven	by	our	Christian	students.	
		
		
The	Assistant	Chaplain’s	position	continued	with	Jo	Benham	and	Ben	Cook	in	the	two	
roles.		Jo’s	focus	continued	to	be	our	Junior	School	where	she	took	responsibility	for	the	
curriculum	and	the	teaching	in	the	classroom	and	planning	and	implementation	of	the	
Junior	School	chapel	services	weekly.	Jo	also	runs	three	other	Bible	study	groups	for	
girls	throughout	the	week,	targeting	different	ages,	Christians	and	those	girls	who	are	
interested	in	knowing	more.	
Ben	is	involved	primarily	with	boarding,	and	it’s	great	to	have	him	in	that	context,	but	
he	also	teaches	PE	and	Cristian	Development,	senior	school	chapels,	boarder’s	chapel	
and	runs	a	middle	school	boys	Bible	Study	once	a	week.	
		
		
Linus	Angari,	a	young	Kenyan	man	has	joined	us	for	as	a	part	time	year	13	worker.	Once	
again	God	has	been	most	gracious	in	providing	someone	to	take	up	that	
opportunity.		We	pray	that	what	he	learns	this	year	will	aid	him	in	his	service	of	our	
Lord	well	into	the	future	and	impact	a	group	of	people	well	outside	our	normal	sphere	
of	influence.			
It	is	encouraging	to	see	all	past	trainees	have	maintained	contact	with	the	school	and	
the	students.	From	dropping	in	and	giving	testimony	to	God’s	faithfulness	since	school	–	
including	the	challenges	they	have	faced,	to	joining	the	KYCK	group	providing	extra	
leadership	and	support.	Not	to	mention	all	are	active	in	ministry	where	they	study,	
work	and	live.		
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While	the	program	is	designed	to	be	training	rather	than	cheap	labour	–	these	young	
people	continue	to	impress	and	provide	ministry	opportunities	that	simply	would	not	
exist	without	them.	Praise	God	for	his	provision	and	equipping.	
		
Sadly,	in	2020	our	regular	trip	to	KYCK	was	cancelled,	perhaps	a	welcome	break	in	this	
year,	yet	still	missed.		
		
The	development	of	the	Christian	Development	curriculum	continues	towards	a	
Biblically	based,	integrated	and	sequential	program.	The	classroom	being	the	base	from	
which	most	other	ministries	with	the	students	spring.	We	are	very	thankful	for	
resources	being	designed	and	made	available	by	CPX,	particularly	during	the	Covid	
lockdown,	which	assisted	in	our	delivery	of	a	quality	program.	
		
Chapel	is	a	great	privilege	and	opportunity	to	open	the	Bible	with	students,	staff	and	the	
broader	school	community.	This	has	varied	in	it’s	delivery	over	the	last	few	months,	but	
we	have	continued	in	one	form	or	another	and	we	are	as	committed	as	ever	to	providing	
solid	Biblical	teaching	to	our	community.	As	many	churches	have	discovered	the	reach	
of	these	ministries	has	been	broadened	by	the	Covid	experience.	We	have	recorded	and	
distributed	Bible	talks,	as	a	result	we	have	had	lots	of	feedback	from	parents	who	
wouldn’t	normally	hear	those	talks,	so	that	has	been	encouraging.	
	
Finally,	and	with	a	heavy	heart	I	must	mention	the	passing	of	our	Headmaster	Murray	
Guest.	I	considered	Murray	a	friend	and	it	rouses	great	sadness	in	me	and	many	others	
to	recall	the	tragedy	of	his	death.	He	always	supported	ministry	at	TAS,	he	never	
hampered	it	or	made	it	difficult,	he	loved	the	idea	that	we	would	attempt	to	preach	the	
whole	counsel	of	scripture.	His	death	rocked	TAS.	However,	in	the	days,	weeks	and	
months	that	have	followed	God	has	graciously	given	us,	me,	opportunities	to	bring	the	
gospel	to	people	in	a	way	that	has	been	so	‘earthy’	and	real	for	them,	people	are	still	
raw,	and	they	want	to	hear	more	and	gain	greater	clarity,	they	want	to	know	about	the	
hope	that	Christians	have.	Please	continue	to	pray	that	this	can	continue	and	for	the	
appointment	of	a	new	Head.	Finally,	I	am	thankful	the	Alan	Jones	has	stepped	in	a	been	
in	a	sense	even	more	supportive,	he	too	can	see	the	critical	nature	of	faith	in	the	one	
true	and	living	God.	
		
		
Richard	Newton	
TAS	Chaplain	
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NEGS Chaplaincy Report, 2020 
Rev. Tamara Ramsay


___________________________________________


Receiving the Baton  
After two and a half years of faithful service, Briony Freeman resigned from her position 
as NEGS Chaplain at the end of Semester One this year. I am most grateful for the 
opportunity to follow in her footsteps and have been most encouraged by the lasting, 
positive impression she has left with students and staff alike.


I understand that, as is the case for most teachers, Briony found the period of remote/
online learning quite challenging. I am relieved that I was able to commence face-to-face 
teaching, on campus, right from the beginning of Term 3. 


Changes to the Role  
For the past two years, the role of Chaplain has involved the teaching of Christian Studies 
to senior years 7-10 (once/week for an hour) and, due to Briony’s persistence, junior years 
3-4 (once/week for 30 minutes). In addition to this, Briony also ran Junior School Chapel, 
two lunchtime groups and various other formal services as requested. These activities 
were spread over three days (as is still the case). 


This Semester, with the permission of the Principal, and encouragement of Mr Timothy 
Forgeard (previously covering some chaplaincy tasks), I have also taken up the running of 
Senior School Chapel each Friday. Additionally, the duration of the year 3 and 4 Christian 
Studies classes has been extended to 45 minutes each, following some negotiation with 
the classroom teacher. 


At present Kindergarten, as well as years 1/2, 5 and 6, are taught CEP Scripture material 
by their classroom teachers. It is my hope that, in the future, the Chaplain will have 
involvement in all Junior School Christian Studies lessons. 


Highlights 
Even in the short time I have been employed at NEGS, there is much to be grateful for, 
including:

- The attendance of approximately 20 children (boys and girls) at the weekly Junior 

School ‘Hope Hour’ (Christian lunchtime group).

- Solid, consistent support and guidance from my Head of Department and Christian 

staff members.

- Inquisitive year 9 and 10 students who are always keen to ask questions, wanting to 

know where the Bible lands in ‘real life’ - great opportunities!  


Prayer 
I would be grateful for your partnership in prayer as I move forward at NEGS:  
- For there to be opportunity for the Chaplaincy role to include the teaching of Christian 

Studies to all primary classes.

- Wisdom running the Senior School lunchtime group. With Covid restrictions, lunchtime 

is staggered and this makes running a cohesive, worthwhile group problematic. 

- Personal skill development in classroom management and teaching methods (this is 

still relatively new to me!)

- That God would take His Word to students and staff, working His purposes out, for the 

furthering of His Kingdom. 
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Diocesan Youth Encourager's Report 2020 

As you can imagine, just like all ministry, it has been a challenging twelve months since I last 

reported to this Synod about the Youth Ministry of our Diocese. The COVID-19 pandemic forced the 

youth committee to completely rethink how we were going to encourage youth ministry across the 

Diocese, and what follows is an account of what has taken place in the last 12-months. With these 

changes, I want to start this report by thanking the committee for their unwavering support for me 

as the Youth Encourager. In 2020 the Youth Committee has been made up of Steve Price, Greg 

Stones, Amanda Wartnaby, Michael Woodley, & Ania Braiding. 

YOUTHSURGE - COMBINED YOUTH NIGHT 2019 

Youth Groups gathered in Gunnedah and Armidale for our YouthSurge - Combined Youth Night on the 

1st of November 2019. YouthSurge is an annual, free, event that gives Young People from across the 

Diocese an opportunity to gather with other youth, enjoy fellowship and to learn from the Bible.  

On the night, we sing songs, play games and most importantly, hear a great talk about Jesus. In 

2019, Rev. Tory Cayzer from Kootingal Moonbi Anglican Church spoke at Gunnedah, and Rev. Steve 

Cimarosti from St Peter’s Armidale spoke at Armidale. A big thank you to the local organising teams 

lead by Kurt Langmead & Michael Hemans in Armidale and David Piper & Greg Stones in Gunnedah.  

YOUTH MUSTER - YOUTH WEEKEND 2020 

 Youth Muster 2020 was shaping up to be a great event. Bishop Rick was due to speak 

evangelistically from Luke’s Gospel in line with our Diocesan year of evangelism along the theme 

of “Seeing Jesus Clearly”. We also received $10,000 in sponsorship from a generous supporter to help 

us to subsidise the cost of a ticket to Youth Muster significantly. This generous donation would have 

reduced the price by more than 50%. 

Unfortunately, we were forced to postpone the event initially, and in June we decided to cancel Youth 

Muster for 2020. This was a tough decision to make, but with the uncertainty for the future, we feel 

it was the best course of action to take. This will help us to put effort into Youth Muster 2021, and 

we hope this will assist churches to get up and running again in the second half of 2020 without 

Youth Muster getting in the way of ministry happening in local churches.  

FUEL - YOUTH LEADERS WEEKEND 2020 

Fuel Youth Leaders weekend was taken entirely online on the 22nd of August. I spoke from Acts 1-2 

as we were all reminded that Jesus is still the King, The Spirit is still at work, and God is still in 

control. We pray that this day was a blessing to the youth groups of the Diocese.  

Next year we will hopefully be able to meet in person again, with Archie Poulos and Nick Stone locked 

in to teach.  

REP - 22



ONLINE MINISTRY DURING COVID-19 

With 2020 being light on in terms of regular events, some members of the Youth Committee turned 

our attention to how we could support youth ministry across the Diocese in other ways. These 

efforts took three primary forms: 

1. I have been in regular contact with youth leaders across the Diocese to encourage them in

whatever they were doing for the youth in their parish. This has taken the form of a few Zoom “meet

ups” to encourage and pray for each other, along with lots of individual conversations.

2. Steve Price and I started producing midweek video devotions on youtube. I worked through

Romans 8 and James 1, while Steve worked through a series from John’s Gospel. These videos seemed

to be an encouragement to the small group who regularly watched them.

3. A few of us started a weekly Corona Q&A to answer questions submitted by young people in the

Diocese. Initially, on Saturday afternoons, then Sunday evenings, we would spend an hour having fun

and answering questions on a broad range of topics from a Christian perspective. A big thank you

goes out to series regulars, Steve Price, Kietta Allen, & Mick Woodley. Along with a long list of guests,

including Bishop Rick, Nick Stone, Jum Naden, Mike Dicker, Dan Wu, Patricia Weerakoon, Geoff

Hearne, & Colin Buchanan.

In all of these things, I want to specifically thank Rev Steve Price for his support and encouragement 

over the last year. At the end of 2019, I had some significant health issues and spent a month in 

Sydney seeking treatment, and 2020 has had its fair share of challenges too. In all these things, he 

has been my right-hand man, and his partnership in the ministry has been greatly valued. 

In conclusion, 2020 has been a challenging year for youth ministry in our Diocese, though there are 

things to give God thanks for. If you’d like to catch up on any of our video material, head along to our 

youtube channel - https://bit.ly/3imZ7iC 

Please be in prayer for the youth leaders of the Diocese because 2020 has not been easy for them. 

The committee would also value your prayers as we plan for next year amid the uncertainty that the 

future brings.  

As the pandemic continues, we are unable to provide dates for upcoming events, but they will appear 
on the Diocesan Youth Website (ArmidaleDioceseYouth.com), and our social media channels when 

we have more to announce. 

Tim Stevens
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Mothers Union Diocese of Armidale
Report to Synod 2020

Our Diocesan Executive met for a Planning Day in February which resulted in early 
arrangements for a Marriage Enrichment course at Narrabri, supported by Bernard 
Gabbot and the Narrabri Anglican Parish Council, and Parenting Seminars in 
Quirindi and Glen Innes to be presented by Anne Cunningham from MU Sydney, and 
with MU Sydney’s sponsorship. These plans were overtaken by Covid 19 and a very 
different year has eventuated.

Instead, we have worked on:

1.  Re-launching a regular Mother’s Union Newsletter - 2 issues this year called 
‘Family Matters’;

2. Overhauled our membership records and administrative systems; and

3. Organising a Diocesan-wide take-up of Keith & Sarah Condie’s marriage 
course (now online) for Term 4 starting in Week 1 for 5 weeks. This will enable 
couples to participate from their own homes without needing to arrange babysitting 
and to have some flexibility over timing.

Branches
We have Mother’s Union Branches at Inverell (16 members) and Armidale Cathedral 
( 24 members) together with 27 Diocesan members who have no Branch affiliation.

Adam Draycott supported the MU Branch President at Inverell, Madge Roberts, 
through a challenging AGM this year as the group determined whether or not they 
would continue as a Branch and in what form. The members voted to continue as a 
Branch. There has been an MU Branch at Inverell for 110 years. 

The Cathedral Branch is co-ordinated by Catherine Hearne, and has continued to 
add new members. The Branch ceased meeting in person after March but has been 
sustained with a wonderful monthly newsletter produced by Catherine with many 
contributors.

Resources
We continue to offer 2 sets of the  Condie Marriage Course DVD’s for loan to 
Parishes. St Mark’s UNE took the opportunity to run an online Marriage Course 
using these resources during Covid. 

No applications have been received this year for any of our 3 annual bursaries of 
$200 to assist a lay member to attend a conference or undertake training in 
children’s or family ministry. These will be available again in 2021.

AGM
We have decided to go ahead with our AGM on 7th November 2020 at the Cathedral 
Parish Hall in Armidale. We hope (at the time of writing) that Janene Lewers will be 
our speaker at an event open to all, followed by the AGM. It will be a strange MU 
event with no catering out of deference to Covid 19.
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We continue to pray for God’s blessing on marriage and family life in our churches 
and to work to equip and support Parishes and individuals in this sphere of life and 
witness.

Elizabeth Parker
Diocesan President, Mothers Union Diocese of Armidale
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Tamworth Hospital Chaplaincy’s 2020 Report to Synod 
 
A summary of the 2019-2020 year 
 
This reporting year divides into two. The first half was the period just prior to my 
taking long service leave, and during this time, ministry went on as normal. By normal 
we mean - circulating throughout the units, touching base with patients and with staff; 
informal ministry chats over coffee in the well-populated café area; supporting the 
wonderful pastoral care volunteers and helping them debrief following their own 
visits; joining in regular prayer groups based in Community Health and Maternity; 
helping to run a couple of local medical fellowship evenings; attending deaths, 
generally in Palliative Care, Intensive Care, and occasionally Maternity, and taking 
occasional funerals. 
 
During this time we also enjoyed learning from the practical experience & wisdom of 
Baz McGrath, a chaplaincy trainer with Anglicare Sydney. Over the course of a Friday 
& Saturday in August 2019, more than 20 participants from around the Diocese 
sharpened their skills in regard to pastoral care and hospital visiting in particular. We 
considered what it would mean to engage in better conversations, and to be someone 
who is not simply ‘aimlessly nice’ but assists the patient in providing a direction 
towards meaning and hope. 

 
 
The second half of this reporting year, of course (as with everybody else) is 
characterised chiefly by the pandemic. I have to say that observing staff preparing for 
an unwanted influx of Covid-positive patients was impressive. They are thorough & 
professional and want to do the best by the patient, but they are also simply people 
with families of their own. It’s a hard line to walk.  
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In some respects the chaplaincy remained the same, and I continued to have access, 
but it was the context for ministry that had altered. Patient numbers dropped by as 
much as 25% throughout March and April (no elective surgery, no sporting injuries, 
no pub brawls). Around the now-sparsely populated café there were less 
opportunities for informal meet-ups. The palliative care unit was briefly relocated, 
thus putting greater stress on staff, and on families facing bereavement. We 
(Chaplaincy and Social Work) had to work through how to minister to dying patients, 
or their families, if the patient was Covid-positive and in isolation. Overall the hospital 
went into a secure lockdown: the picture of the main entrance (below) was taken in 
the middle of the day. 
 
The most significant alteration for the pastoral care team was the dramatic shift from 
‘team’ to ‘person’; volunteers across all parts of the campus were asked to stay away, 
including my faithful band of visitors who provide so much extra coverage, and I have 
missed their invaluable fellowship and assistance every week. Having said that, ‘the 
Lord has many people in this city’: the nursing staff who are also prayer partners; a 
very supportive General Manager; other staff with whom I open the Bible on a regular 
basis; the clergy of this Diocese, and regular encouragement from Anglicare Sydney 
(many thanks, Stephen Gibson, Health & Justice Chaplaincy manager). It is now a 
cherished ambition to actually attend a Health & Justice Chaplaincy meet-up (they’re 
generally in Sydney) and to mingle with other chaplains. In the current climate, that 
might be some time away. 
 
Two concluding reflections 
 
‘I feel better’ 
 
Early in July I was asked by a daughter to visit her aging mother. We had never met 
before. At the end of time spent listening, earning trust, a Bible reading and prayer, I 
prepared to leave. As she thanked me for coming, she said something – almost under 
her breath, to herself, more than to me – ‘I feel better now’. 
 
What happens when someone says ‘I feel better’? She had not been healed in her body, 
and a number of significant psycho-social issues remained just as unresolved as they 
were before the encounter. Had we simply applied a sanctified band-aid to deeper 
problems? 
 
But chaplaincy is not about solving problems, or masking issues. What we had done 
was to bring her health and her issues into the daylight, acknowledge them, and then 
bring them in prayer before the Lord of her life. We had trained the spotlight of Biblical 
hope on these issues, and in her heart she remembered that while illness and death 
are mighty, God is mightier still. The issues remained, but in Christ she felt better – 
about them. 
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The privilege of being in the room 

I have been reflecting on the death and burial of Sarah (Genesis 23), and how Abraham 
was able to secure a burial place for his wife in the field belonging to Ephron, in the 
land of Canaan. Think of it: He had lost his nearest and dearest, but her burial took 
place in the land of promise. He had to let her go, but the setting for the parting was 
the place that God would eventually give to his people. As he farewelled his wife, the 
eyes of his faith were drawn, rightly, away from Sarah and toward greater things. 

This account spends more time describing the negotiations with Ephron than with 
Abraham’s feelings, summarily dealt with in vs2. But I am guessing that saying 
goodbye to your life partner of many decades would be a terrible and long-lasting 
wrench. Nevertheless, I heard it said last year that ‘the happiest chaplains are those 
who work in palliative care’ and I can only affirm the truth of this. To be in the same 
room as death is not to be taken lightly, and each family responds uniquely and often 
unpredictably. The primary task is to support them. But the privilege of being in the 
room is once again taking the opportunity, with old Abraham, to lift our eyes from 
what is precious yet temporal, and focus on what is unseen yet eternal. The privilege 
is being with the family at the precise moment when their hearts have lost something, 
they are groping for solid ground, and we can gently draw their attention to greater 
things – even ‘an anchor for the soul’ (Heb 6.19). 

Thank you for your continued support, networking and prayer, as we continue to 
offer the one true anchor for souls. 

Gus Batley, Chaplain, Tamworth Base Hospital 

Tamworth Hospital, Main Entrance, 25 March 2020, 11 am
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ARMIDALE RURAL REFERRAL HOSPITAL 
CHAPLAIN’S REPORT : SYNOD 2020

Ministry in the Armidale hospital has been very frustrating. Whilst the Diocese looks at the 

ministry as a hospital chaplaincy, the Armidale hospital still classes me as a “volunteer”. 

That puts me at the same level as any parish minister or even the visitors from the Cancer 

Council or other secular organisation. This didn’t create a problem until the covid-19 

lockdown. One of the hospital’s policies was to exclude all volunteers from hospital visiting. 

When I spoke to the Director of Nursing, he advised that I could visit one patient only (no 

moving from room to room). And, if a patient specifically requested a chaplain they would 

ring me. Since the government started easing restrictions, I have dropped into the hospital 

regularly to remind them of the need for chaplaincy; that I’m still around; and to ask if 

there is any news about when I may be allowed to resume; to no avail. As a result there 

has been no hospital chaplaincy at Armidale since the covid-19 lockdown began. Advice has 

been sought from Anglicare on this issue. At the time of writing the report there has been 

no resolution.  

Up to the lockdown, the contributions to the Hospital Chaplaincy Fund had been 

keeping pace with the payments. However, since the lockdown, contributions have 

dropped. In addition, a fundraising event was unable to be held. As a result the balance of 

the Hospital Chaplaincy Fund has started to decrease. 

I apologise that there is not much to report. But I do ask to keep the Armidale 

hospital, and especially its patients in your prayers.  

The Rev. Jonathan Earnshaw
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DIOCESAN COUNCIL REPORT TO 

THE SECOND SESSION OF THE FIFTIETH SYNOD 

ANGLICAN DIOCESE OF ARMIDALE 

 

1. THE DIOCESAN COUNCIL 

 

The Diocesan Council is constituted under the Governance of the Diocese Ordinance 

2016-2019. Diocesan Council is responsible to Synod for: 

(a) overseeing the implementation of the mission and vision of the Diocese 

as adopted by Synod from time to time; 

(b) ensuring the well-being of parishes, special districts and other ministries 

of the Diocese; 

(c) superintending the administrative, financial, legal and property affairs of 

the Diocese between Synods; 

(d) preparing legislation for Synod to consider; 

(e) overseeing the operations of Diocesan agencies and bodies; and 

(f) obtaining, and having possession of, all requisite deeds and declarations 

of trust in connection with church lands throughout the Diocese.  

 

The current members of the Diocesan Council are: 

(a) The Bishop – The Rt. Rev. Rick Lewers 

(b) The Vicar-General – The Rev. Brian Kirk 

(c) The Dean – The Very Rev. Chris Brennan 

(d) the Archdeacons – The Vens. Geoff Hearne, Darrell Parker, Bernard 

Gabbott, Simon Waller, Adam Draycott 

(e) the Chancellor – Mr. Michael Easton 

(f) the Diocesan Solicitor – Mr. David White 

(g) the Chairman of Committees – The Rev. Tory Cayzer 

(h) the Registrar – The Rev. Christopher Pears  

(i) four clerical and four lay persons elected by the Synod - the Revs Simon 

Carter, Rod Chiswell and Scott Dunlop, with one clergy spot vacant following 

the resignation of Danny Morris; Messrs Paul Harvey, Andrew McClenaghan 

and James Levingston and Mrs Lesley Hathway. 
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(j) up to a further two clerical and two lay persons who are members of 

Synod appointed by the Bishop – Messrs. Andrew Draney and James Kahl. 

 

The Diocesan Council has met five times since the last Synod. 

 

26 November 2019 

25 February 2020 

12 May 2020 (via Zoom) 

10 June 2020 (via Zoom) 

21 July 2020 (via Zoom) 

 

A further regular meeting is scheduled for 1 September 2020. 

 

In addition to these meetings, a further 18 matters were put to the Diocesan Council 

via e-mail votes. 

 

Communication can be made with the Diocesan Council through the Registrar at 

registrar@armidaleanglicandiocese.com or PO Box 198 Armidale NSW 2350. 

 

2. MATTERS CONSIDERED BY DIOCESAN COUNCIL SINCE SEPTEMBER 2019 

2.1 280 Moore Creek Road 

“Rosebud”, a ten hectare property at 280 Moore Creek Road, adjacent to the 

William Cowper Campus of Calrossy Anglican School, was purchased by the 

Diocese in January 2019 with a view to it being split between a church plant and 

Calrossy. Diocesan Council has overseen the renovation of the residence on the 

property to make it suitable for a minister to begin work as the church planter. A 

total of $155,676.06 (ex GST where applicable) has been spent on the 

renovation. The Rev. Scott and Mrs. Jo Dunlop moved into the house in February 

2020, and the church plant, the Special District of North Tamworth, has been 

growing under his leadership since then, notwithstanding the difficulties 

brought about by the COVID-19 restrictions. 
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Scott Dunlop spruiking the new church 

 

2.2 The National Redress Scheme and other Redress Matters 

The Anglican Diocese of Armidale is a participating institution in the National 

Redress Scheme through the Anglican Group established by the General Synod 

(ARNRSL). Since joining, five claims have been referred to the Diocese through 

the scheme. At the time of writing, the Diocese has submitted its response to 

four of those five, and this has resulted in the Diocese being found to have a 

liability in one of those cases, with the other three still being assessed. 

 

In the last year, the Diocese has also received two approaches for redress 

independent of the National Redress Scheme. In one of these cases, Diocesan 

Council has taken the decision to engage expert legal counsel who has then 

sought further professional help in investigating the allegations. 

 

While these matters may well raise questions in the minds of Synod members, 

please understand that we are not at liberty to discuss the particulars of any of 

the cases. 

 

The Registrar attended (via video link) a meeting of the ARNRSL. Members 

raised with the representatives of the National Redress Scheme a number of 

concerns, and in particular asked that the scheme include a mechanism whereby 

institutions could have a mechanism of appeal against NRS decisions. 

 

NEGS remains the only Anglican body within our Diocese that has not joined the 

National Redress Scheme. 

 

2.3 Storage of Diocesan Archives 
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After further discussions with the honorary Diocesan archivist and other 

interested parties, Diocesan Council decided not to proceed with the 

construction of an archive storage facility on the land behind St. Mary’s Anglican 

Church, West Armidale. Alternative options are being investigated. 

2.4 Diocesan Grants 

Diocesan Council approved the following grants: 

St Mark’s Chapel UNE – The Rev. Polly Wong retired from her position as the 

International Student Ministry Worker attached to St. Peter’s Cathedral at 

the start of 2020. St. Mark’s Chapel, after consultation with St. Peter’s 

Cathedral, came to Diocesan Council with a proposal to fill this gap. As a 

result, Grace Barrett has been employed in this capacity under the oversight 

of St. Mark’s Chapel, and the Diocese has committed $132,500 over five 

years to support this ministry. 

Manilla Parish - $24,200 over two years to help pay for a ministry trainee 

Barwon District Anglican Churches - $4,500 for children’s holiday clubs 

St. Peter’s South Tamworth Parish - $24,000 over two years to support an 

Indigenous Ministry trainee. 

2.5 White Pages Listing 

Diocesan Council decided to discontinue the practice of paying for White Pages 

listings for various parishes. 

2.6 ACNC External Conduct Standards 

The Australian Charities and Not-For-Profits Commission has mandated 

standards to be observed by all Australian registered charities who operate 

overseas. This includes the Diocese because of our North Kigezi link, but it also 

includes any parish which supports overseas missionaries who have not been 

sent by a body which is an Australian registered charity.  

 

The North Kigezi Link team has developed a raft of policies to ensure that the 

Diocesan work in North Kigezi is in compliance with the standards, and the team 

has since been asked to develop a more general purpose set of policies that 

would also encompass any work done by parishes that needs to comply with the 

standards. 

2.7 Paid Relocation leave 

Diocesan Council approved the provision of Paid Relocation Leave for clergy 

moving from one parish to another within the Diocese. This leave is for one 

week (including a Sunday), it may only be used for moving, and the cost of it is 

to be shared 50:50 between the parish the clergyperson is leaving, and the 

parish the clergyperson is going to. 

2.8 Calrossy Ordinances 

As authorised by the 2019 Synod, the Diocesan Council passed the William 

Cowper Anglican School (Election of Separate Trustees and Variation of Trusts) 
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Ordinance 2019 and the Calrossy Anglican School Ordinance 2019 to tie up 

some loose ends arising from the historic amalgamation of Calrossy and William 

Cowper Anglican School. 

2.9 Travelling Chaplain 

The appointment of a Travelling Chaplain has been put on hold for the moment. 

2.10 Diocesan Accountant 

The Diocesan Council decided that the Diocesan Accountant position should be 

relocated to Armidale. The Diocesan Accountant at that time elected not to 

make that move. Mr. Robert Faithfull has since been appointed as the new 

Diocesan Accountant, and he is working from the Registry offices in Armidale. 

2.11 Appointments to Diocesan Bodies 

Diocesan Council made the following appointments to various Diocesan bodies: 

 

Board of Enquiry 

Chair: Anne Robinson; Board Members: Darrell Parker Tory Cayzer Julie Cook, 

James Levingston, Eunice Holford, Damien Riches – Note: Anne Robinson has 

since resigned. 

 

Panel of Triers  

Chair: TBA, Deputy: TBA, Chris Brennan, Adam Draycott, Bernard Gabbott, Rod 

Chiswell, Elizabeth Parker, Nigel Pain, Jenny Waller 

 

Professional Standards Committee 

Chair: Geoff Hearne; Members: Simon Waller, Allan Beaven, Tineke Dekkers, 

Claire Dunlop, Jim Cook, Virginia Boland 

 

Professional Standards Board 

President: Mr. Ian Davidson SC; Deputy President: Mr. James Levingston;  

Secretary: Christopher Pears 

Members: Brian Kirk, Daniel Avenell, Tam Ramsay, Ben France, David Smith, 

Sandy Cudmore, Neil Smith, Carmen Cudmore 

 

Commission for Evangelism and Mission 

Chair: Scott Dunlop 

DC Appointments: John Cooper, Dean Blomfield 

Members proposed by the chair: Robert Cooper, Tory Cayzer, David Robinson, 

Andrew McClenaghan 

 

Commission for Education and Discipleship 

Chair: Xavier Lukins 

DC Appointments: Kaylene McClenaghan 
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Members proposed by the chair: Mrs. Janene Lewers, Kurt Langmead 

 

Parish and Ministry Development Commission 

Chair: Geoff Hearne 

DC Appointments: Samantha Brennan, Nick Stone 

Members proposed by the chair: Steve Cimarosti, John Griffiths, Stephen 

Goldsmith, Robin Wark and Tom Faithfull 

 

Calrossy Anglican School Board 

Appointed by DC in the last 12 months: Trish Moore, Penny Blomfield and Kim 

Scott 

 

2.12 Synod and Parish AGM’s 

Diocesan Council, in recognising the difficulties COVID restrictions had placed 

on gatherings, developed contingency plans for Synod and Parish AGM’s, trying 

to balance compliance with legislation with compliance with Public Health 

Orders in a way that still provided accountability and transparency. 

2.13 Bishop’s Resignation 

Bishop Rick Lewers advised the Diocesan Council that he would be tendering his 

resignation on 30 July 2020, indicating that he had accepted an offer from the 

Archbishop of Sydney to take up an appointment as the Rector of the Parish of 

Shoalhaven Heads. The Bishop ‘s resignation will take effect at the end of 

January 2021, though he will be on leave from the second week of December 

2020. 

 

The Vicar General, in consultation with the Diocesan Council, has determined 

that 12 December 2020 will be the day of the Electoral Synod. 

2.14 Ordinances for Synod 

Diocesan Council approved the following ordinances for Synod: 

• Provincial Synod Tribunal Ordinance 2018 Adopting Ordinance 2020 

• Investment Ordinance 1970 Amending Ordinance 2020 

 

On behalf of the Diocesan Council 

The Registrar 

11 August 2020 
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DIOCESAN DEVELOPMENT FUND 
 

REPORT TO SYNOD 2020 
 

Introduction 

The experience of the Diocesan Development Fund (DDF) during 2019-20 is a combination 
of steady activity for most of the year followed by the hiatus resulting from COVID-19.   
 

Performance during 2019-20 

What a year 2019-20 has been – and the unprecedented factors created by COVID-19 
continue into 2020-21.  First, however, a comment on the financial performance of the DDF 
during the first part of this year.  Over the first eight months of this financial year, your Fund 
experienced a continuation of the strong inflow of funds.  Between 30 June 2019 and 31 
January 2020, the balances in: 

• Community Saver Accounts increased from $2.55 million to $3.29 million; 

• Monthly Saver Accounts increased from $0.30 million to $1.65 million; 

• Historical Monthly Saver Accounts increased from $0.32 million to $0.42 million. 
 
As a consequence of this growth, the total liabilities of the DDF increased from $4.61 million 
in June 2019 to $6.32 million in January 2020.  This was a very pleasing result for the Fund.  
The very strong growth in the Monthly Saver Accounts largely reflected the decision by the 
Board of the DDF to align the interest rates on these accounts with those for the Community 
Saver Accounts. 
 
Second is the analysis of what has happened following the advent of COVID-19.  The world 
started to change early in 2020 and, in March 2020, the Australian Government effectively 
closed the Australian economy.  This decision was taken at around the same time as other 
countries were making similar decisions.   
 
One of the most significant influences for the DDF from this changed operating environment 
were the decisions by the Reserve Bank of Australia to reduce the cash rate ultimately to 
0.25 per cent.  Over the course of 2019-20, the cash rate fell from 1.25 per cent to 0.25 per 
cent.  The reduction had a flow-on effect to all interest rates and the Board of the DDF had 
to reduce the rates of interest on investments and loans a number of times during the year.  
As these rates have been changed, the Board has been mindful that it is still essential to 
generate a reasonable margin between lending and investment rates to provide a surplus 
for the Fund. 
 
As we are all well aware, the consequences of COVID-19 continue to have a dramatic effect 
on Australia and every other country – although some countries are doing better than 
others at responding to COVID-19.  As a general response, the value of many asset classes 
has fallen quite dramatically (oil even became negative for a small period!).   
 
The significance of this trend for the DDF has been that the value of the investments 
managed by Ord Minnett fell quite significantly over the past few months.  From a total of 
just over $5 million in January 2020, the value of these investments fell to $4.3 million in 
March 2020.  There has been a significant recovery in the value of these assets since the 

REP - 36



 

2 

 

lowest point was reached in late March 2020, although the recovery is not even and will be 
much longer than occurred, for example, after the global financial crisis in 2008. 
 
Despite the dramatic effects of COVID-19, the DDF continues to actively seek new loans.   
 
It is pleasing to note that one home loan has been paid out during the year – meaning that 
the people involved now have a debt-free asset that will assist them particularly in providing 
for them when they retire. In addition to this, three motor vehicle loans have been finalised 
throughout the year.  
 
At 30 June 2020, the DDF had one Diocesan loan, one Diocesan School loan, three Parish 
loans, eight Motor Vehicle loans and three Home loans.   
 
As the DDF has become more established, it is important to appreciate that the 
fundamental benefit of the Fund is to achieve a margin between the revenue gained from 
loans and the cost of interest paid on investments in the Fund.  From this margin, the DDF is 
able to provide funds to the Diocese to support the mission of the Diocese. 
 
The Board has noted previously that the DDF has had to continue to operate in an 
environment of some uncertainty about its relationship with the Anglican Investment and 
Development Fund (AIDF) in the Diocese of Canberra and Goulburn.  At this time, however, 
the AIDF has not gained an Australian Financial Services Licence.  This means that, for the 
present, our relationship with the AIDF continues as it has been for some years. 
 

Financial outcome 

In 2019-20, the DDF achieved an unaudited surplus of $68,777.  This surplus was achieved 
after providing a contribution to the Diocese of $25,000. This represents an increase from 
the $20,000 paid in the previous year.  
 
In addition to the funds paid to the Diocese, the DDF also distributed $17,326 to nominated 
parishes, entities and projects through the additional interest component derived from the 
Community Saver Accounts and the Monthly Saver Accounts.  For the 2019-20 financial 
year, the nominated interest distribution resulted in funds being distributed to 28 Parishes 
or Special Districts (Armidale, Ashford/Delungra, Baradine, Boggabilla/North Star, Bundarra, 
Cockburn Valley, Emmaville/Deepwater, Glen Innes, Gunnedah, Guyra, Inverell, Lightning 
Ridge, Manilla, Moree, Mungindi, Narrabri, Oxley Vale, South Tamworth, Tambar Springs, 
Tamworth, Tenterfield, the UNE Chapel, Uralla, Walcha, Walgett/Collarenebri, Warialda, 
Wee Waa and West Tamworth), one project (the North Kigezi Partnership) and five entities 
(the Diocese itself, the Bishops’ Sustaining Ministry Fund, the Tamworth Hospital Chaplain, 
Armidale Hospital Chaplain and the Indigenous Ministry Fund).   
 

Assets of DDF 

As at 30 June 2020, the total assets of the DDF were $6.9 million.  Also at 30 June 2020, the 
Diocese’s equity in the DDF was $914,654. 
 
The final value of these parameters will not be known until the audited financial statements 
of the DDF for 2019-20 are available. 
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Promotion 

The Board of the Fund continues to seek ways to promote the DDF across our Diocese.  The 
Board again emphasises that there is a lot of information available on the DDF through the 
Diocesan web site. The address is: http://www.armidaleanglicandiocese.com/ddf  
 

Association with Other Parties 

The DDF continues to rely on people in other entities for expert advice and services.  The 
DDF continues to use the services of the AIDF in the Diocese of Canberra and Goulburn to 
provide on-line services to investors.   
 
Ord Minnett continues to provide an excellent service to the DDF, including managing the 
funds that have not been used to fund loans. 
 

The Board 

I want to extend my sincere thanks to my fellow Board members for the contributions they 
have made to our deliberations during the year.  We have continued to work very well 
together. 
 
As we experience these times of considerable uncertainty the Board of the DDF extends its 
appreciation to all those who are involved with the DDF – investors, borrowers and the 
Anglican community generally. We continue to be brilliantly served by Mrs. Samantha 
Brennan as she manages the range of issues that are involved in a financial entity.  
Mr. Bob Franklin continues to provide the DDF with his expertise in assessing applications 
for loans:  thank you Bob. 
 

Future 

The revamped DDF is now in its sixth year of operation.  I believe it is evident that the DDF is 
now seen as an important component in the life of our Diocese.  This can be seen by the 
strong support the Fund has received from investors over the past year.   
 
Your Board wants to ensure that the DDF continues to be seen as a trusted option for 
investment funds and for loans.  Thank you for your support. 
 
 
Tim McGhie 
Chairman 
 
12 August 2020 
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Commission for Evangelism and Mission  
SYNOD Report 2020 

1. Stimulus for Diocesan-wide evangelism and outreach events 

 

 
Seeing Jesus Clearly Diocesan Mission - Part of a wider plan: 

2019 Evangelism Training and Prayer with a view to a 2020 Evangelism and Prayer Mission (CEM) 

2020 Discipleship Training in preparation for follow up to the 2020 mission (CED) 

2021    Pastoral Care initiative (PAMDC) 

 

The 2019 Year of Evangelism Training and Prayer: 
Evangelism Training: 

The main focus for the first 6 months of 2019 was encouraging a heart for the lost, and in the 

second 6 months, equipping for evangelism. 

Regionally, Rev Stephen Abbott conducted Everyday Evangelism seminars in our 5 regional 

centres; Tamworth, Gunnedah, Narrabri, Inverell, and Armidale, with approx. 600 people 

attending the 3 week course. Thanks to a generous donor who gave $5000 towards the cost of the 

Evangelism Training, the seminars were able to be subsidised to just $10/person for the course.  

For any parishes unable to make the seminars or wanting to do a refresher, Steve’s sessions are 

available on DVD and all materials are available by contacting him. 

Locally, it was encouraging seeing Parishes making 2019 a year of evangelism training and prayer, 

and uniting with that aim in different contexts around the Diocese.   

 

An Evangelism training and prayer focus also happened at a diocesan level at the Youth Muster, 

and Fuel conferences, and an evangelism training session with the Bishop was also run at 

Men@Glen. Each issue of the Link has run helpful articles on the topic, to assist our Seeing Jesus 

Clearly mission. Thanks to contributors and our editor, Robyn Powell. 

 

Prayer: 

Seeing Jesus Clearly prayer points for parishes and individuals have been produced by the mission 

Prayer Coordinator Rev Tory Cayzer, and can be found in the Diocesan Prayer Diary, and the 

Prayermate App. Prayer points have been collected and distributed each quarter to enable a 

partnership in prayer across parishes.  

Parishes are asked to assist Tory in his work coordinating prayer across the Diocese during the 

remainder of our Seeing Jesus Clearly mission by keeping him informed with any mission prayer 

points they would like others to pray for. 
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The 2020 Year of Evangelism and Prayer: 

2020 has certainly been a very different year to what we were expecting but we trust that God has 

answered our prayers despite COVID, to help people in our area, ‘See Jesus More Clearly.’  

There has been much consideration and planning for working together across parishes to further 

the gospel in 2020. Some of these suggested ideas for parishes included:  Guest Services / Back to 

Church Sunday’s; Christianity Explained/Explored groups; mission weeks; demographic specific 

nights eg youth, men’s, seniors, indigenous; Dialogue Meetings; etc. 

Post COVID 19 it would be great if some of these plans and working partnerships across parishes, 

are able to be followed through and realised. 

At a Regional Level, Rev Al Stewart was scheduled to speak evangelistically in parishes in our five 

Deanery’s, Namoi; Barwon; Gwydir; New England; & Peel, on the 12-20 September & 13-18 October 

2020. These live meetings have had to be cancelled. However Al has been willing to produce a talk on 

Video that can be used especially at Men’s events.  At present COVID restrictions still allow groups of 

up to 20 people to still meet at someone's place. Therefore around the diocese, men's breakfasts could 

be held, inviting some believing and non-believing mates, and showing the evangelistic talk on video. It 

could happen live, or if we go back into lockdown, it could still happen online in one form or another. 

 

2. Encouraging, facilitating and supporting the proclamation of the Gospel 

within the Diocese 

Evangelism is the responsibility of all Christian’s not just clergy, therefore CEM has been seeking to 

help clergy better facilitate this and lead a parish in evangelism. CEM has continued to encourage 

‘Sharpen your Stick’ sessions in Deanery meetings. This keeps evangelism on the agenda in 

meetings and serves to help inspire and motivate as everyone ‘Sharpens the Stick’ together. 

Guidelines for running this session have been given to Archdeacons.  

3. Regional Prayer meetings  

We continue to seek to encourage regional prayer meetings across the Diocese. This happens at 

Synod each year but is encouraged in Deanery’s, as well. Prayer meetings in one form or another 

are encouraged twice a year, with May and November the suggested time. Be creative about how 

it might work best in your area.  Some examples of what is happening in some places: parishes 

sharing prayer points in Archdeaconry’s and meeting in a central parish for a prayer meeting; 

holding a special section in the service to pray for other parishes; holding a parish prayer meeting 

and praying through prayer points from other parishes.  

 

 

Rev Scott Dunlop  

CEM Committee Chairman 
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Commission for Discipleship and Education (CED) 
 
Dear members of synod, 
 
I’d like to report on things that we were able to do the second half of last year and the first 
half of this year. However as you all know the global pandemic hit and the best laid plans 
of mice and men hit the reality of something none of us ever foresaw. 
 
We were geared up to run 3 regional Lay Ministry Training days in March, June and July of 
2020. On the menu was Lay Preacher training, training in mentoring men and women, 
One-2-one ministry and more. Yet we had to postpone all this. The good news is that 
much of the work is done and God willing we may be able to reactivate these initiatives for 
next year, or whenever we are able to meet up again safely for these types of activities. 
 
The other initiative we were steadily working on was our Next Phase ministry conference 
planned for early November 2020. Again much work has been done. Yet again we have 
had to postpone this. We need at least 5 months lead up time for presenters to prepare 
and to get the advertising out etc. Running this conference in November 2020 has become 
clearly not a good option. So we have rescheduled this conference for November 2021. 
The good news is that Peter Jensen our speaker, has agreed to serve us in 2021. This 
conference is for 55 year olds plus. There is some exciting and stimulating input on the 
program. Ministering to grand-children, age care, dealing with dementia and grief and 
more. Please pray we might be able to get this going in 2021. 
 
As we are interested in supporting lay ministry in our diocese, we have also developed a 
Lay Preachers guide and program to be used in mentoring relationship between clergy 
and laity. We hope that this initiative will take root in the ministry of many clergy and lay 
preachers in our diocese. 
 
Apart from that, Janene Lewers will be leaving the commission as Rick takes up a new 
ministry in the Sydney diocese. Janene has been a constant, faithful team member whose 
input will be missed. The Lord has gifted her with an encouraging spirit, a concern for the 
gospel, excellent administration skills and wisdom. Please pray that the Lord would raise 
up other workers for our teamwork on the commission. 
 
We have also been blessed with the participation of Kurt Langmead the rector of Lightning 
Ridge. Kurt has been a great team player and has integrated the team with a serving spirit. 
I anticipate the Lord doing good things through his involvement. 
 
I am also grateful for the on going consistent support of Kaylene McClenaghan. Her input 
is constantly stimulating and pushes us into areas we wouldn’t ordinarily go without her 
presence. 
 
So please pray for new members for the commission and that the Lord may use us in 
2021. 
 
Yours sincerely Xavier Lukins (Chair) 
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Parish and Ministry Development Commission (PAMDC) 2020 Synod Report 

 

Members-  Ven Geoff Hearne – Chair, Revs Nick Stone, Steve Cimarosti, Mrs Samantha 
Brennan, Messrs Stephen Goldsmith, Tom Faithfull, John Griffiths and Miss Robyn Wark 

 

Since our last Synod, we have been pleased to welcome new members onto the team to 
refresh our involvement and expertise to help with the task of supporting parishes and the 
ongoing ministry within the Diocese. Sadly, we said farewell to Danny Morris who was the 
previous chair and has led this commission through some important decision making over 
the last few years. 

An area that has been under discussion for the last year or so is the issue of clergy 
recruitment and training. As we are all too well aware, we have struggled to find able men 
to come into the Diocese to take up the role of vicars or curates in our local church. The 
decline in people offering themselves for this style of ministry is a widespread problem 
across many Dioceses, denominations and is revealed in declining numbers at Bible colleges. 

Unfortunately, due to the COVID lockdown, opportunities to meet students and help in 
recruitment at the planned college missions that were to be held in various parishes this 
year did not occur. Visits to the various colleges have also not been able to occur this year as 
the colleges have been teaching on-line.  

This year, PAMDC recommended to DC that a paid relocation leave be established for 
helping clergy move between parishes. DC approved one week’s paid relocation leave to be 
paid 50/50 between the outgoing and incoming parishes. 

PAMDC has also scheduled in another Administration training day for parish councillors and 
treasurers to help understand Diocesan requirements for October 2021. 

The main task for this year has been the issue of pastoral care. DC asked PAMDC to consider 
how best to support pastoral care of clergy and their spouses. We started to consider some 
of the options but with the COVID lockdown, our meetings have been few. We are looking 
at what appropriate, affordable and accessible resources there are to help clergy with the 
on-going ask of maintaining their own good habits of self-care so they can be effective in 
caring for others. Hopefully we will have more to say on resources and systems into the 
future. 

The issue of pastoral care for parishioners is also an issue under discussion at PAMDC, and 
the resources for parishes will overlap with that of clergy. In keeping with the decision of 
the Ministry Commission a few years ago, 2020 was the year of prayer and evangelism, 2021 
to be a year of prayer and discipleship, so 2022 was to be a year of prayer and pastoral care. 

So PAMDC will be looking at ways to equip, train and support pastoral care of parishioners 
into the future. We are currently discussing the best way forward to equip people and 
provide resources for this task. 
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The COVID changes have disrupted our endeavours, as it has many things. God willing, we 
look forward to being able to share resources across the Diocese in the coming year or two, 
so as to help with the ongoing work of parish ministry.  

 

Geoff Hearne 
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Safe Ministry (SM) and SRE (Scripture) Report  2020 

Scripture 

In late March scripture was suspended for approximately 14 weeks as a result of the Covid virus. As 

of the writing of this report all scripture should be back to normal classes. While scripture was 

suspended, the curriculum providers provided online lessons for parents to access whilst the 

children were at home. 

ICCOREIS (Inter Church Commission for Religious Education in Schools) worked very hard with the 

Dept of Education (DoE) during this period to ensure the swift return to normal classes.  As many of 

our volunteer scripture teachers are in the ‘vulnerable’ category some parishes have been able to 

train new teachers to step in where some teachers have stepped out for the time being. 

Many of our parishes were eager to get back to teaching as soon as possible because of the great 

relationships in our local communities between the church and the school. 

I have continued to be a member of the ICCOREIS Commission and Board. I would encourage the 

Diocese to continue representation on the Commission into the future as it provides a regional voice 

on the commission and also helps to keep the Diocese well informed about the implementation of 

scripture in NSW. 

The DoE is moving towards online enrolment in the coming years and if it is not implemented 

correctly could mean that the number of students in our scripture classes will be impacted. 

Face to face scripture training was held in Tamworth in March with over 50 doing either the 

foundation modules or development training and in Glen Innes in July. Zoom training was conducted 

with scripture teachers from Moree as well. Zoom has allowed me to train during the lockdown and 

will continue to be a good tool for training into the future.  Anglican Youthworks has been 

supporting this training throughout the Diocese. 

Safe Ministry 

As reported last year much of our Safe Ministry training across the Diocese is being completed 

online. There are some places however where internet connection is not good and/or people are not 

computer literate and so face to face training is still happening.  

There are a number of local SM trainers in the larger centres who are able to run training throughout 

the year. 

I have run SM training at the Cathedral, Bundarra and Emmaville for people not able to access the 

online training. 

Janene Lewers
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2020 Synod Safe Ministry Report 

 

Thankfully it has been a quiet year in regard to Safe Ministry since our last Synod. This has been the result 
of a number of reasons.  

Firstly, it is because all our parishes are now on SaMRO. I would like to thank all our parishes for their work 
in enabling this to happen so that there is a consistency to our record keeping across the Diocese. SaMRO 
enables each parish to maintain their own records and ensures a more consistent approach to renewals as 
SaMRO notifies people when renewals of Working With Children Checks (WWCC) and Safe Ministry 
training are required.  

The second reason for a quiet year is that because of the COVID closures, a number of ministries went into 
recess which required less checking. In association with the closures, the Children’s Guardian extended all 
WWCC clearances that were due to expire from 26 March 2020 to 26 September 2020 for a further six 
months. The six-month period applies from the date of the person’s current expiry date. At the time of our 
Synod though, it means that people will have to start renewing their WWCC. 

Thirdly, a quiet year is a result of good practices that have been rolled out across the Diocese over the last 
few years. All people engaged in children’s ministry are aware of their obligations and the systems put in 
place have enabled safe ministry to occur. Although there have been moments when people have crossed 
appropriate boundaries, they have been detected quickly and responded to appropriately as a result of the 
structures and training we have in place. I thank God for all the efforts of many people across the Diocese 
to enable us to reach this high level. Our efforts now are to ensure ongoing safe ministry by maintaining 
compliance and not falling into complacency.   

Changes 

There are a couple of changes that have occurred. From the 1st of March this year, churches came under 
the NSW Government’s Reportable Conduct Scheme. This means that vicars are obligated to notify the 
Office of the Children’s Guardian of any allegation or conviction of reportable conduct of a volunteer or 
employee within 7 days of becoming aware of it. They then have 30 days to lodge an interim report on 
investigations that have been carried out. Further information with regard to this can be found at 
https://www.kidsguardian.nsw.gov.au/child-safe-organisations/reportable-conduct-scheme 

There is also a new addition to SaMRO. There is now a space to record when a volunteer has filled in their 
Safe Ministry check/questionnaire as they begin a new ministry. The questionnaire is available to clergy in 
the log-in section of the Diocesan website. The Safe Ministry questionnaires still need to be kept in a 
secure place by each parish. 

As a result of the changes and disruptions to ministry practices over the last few months, our Safe Ministry 
obligations may well have taken a back seat as we weren’t physically meeting. As we get back into 
gathering and starting up children’s and youth ministry, please take this opportunity to check your records 
and ensure those who are ministering to children and youth are up to date with their requirements.  

Let us continue to engage safely in our ministry for the sake of the gospel. 

 

Geoff Hearne 
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INDIGENOUS SUB-COMMITTEE REPORT TO SYNOD 2020 

 
The Committee, comprising of Revds. Rod Chiswell, Stephen Etherington, George 

Ferguson, Paul Foster, Brian Kirk, and Nathaniel Naden and will have met four times 

by Synod 2020 either face to face or on zoom.   

 

‘Black Lives Matter’ protests in the USA have prompted a similar response in Australia 

raising the issue of racism.  Some commentators have suggested there exists systemic 

racism in our governments, communities and even in our churches.  How do we as 

Christians respond to such claims?  How do clergy respond to an Aboriginal person or a 

Torres Strait Islander or a person of colour coming to the Vicarage looking for help?   

 

N.T. Wright in his article called “Racism and the Church” writes the following: 

“Postmodernism wants to eliminate racism because all people are different, and should 

be valued and respected as such”(page 10).  I thought that should be the task of the 

Church as it proclaims and lives the gospel of Jesus Christ? 

 

Once again, this is a complex but important conversation.  The Indigenous Sub-

committee is yet to discuss this matter in any depth, but it is my hope that we will do so 

at our next meeting.  However, the task and vision of the Indigenous Sub-Committee is 

to reach Indigenous people with the gospel in the Armidale Diocese, and resource and 

support ministry to Indigenous people.  Consequently, the committee has once again 

been active in fulfilling its vision. 

 

It was great to see Rev George Ferguson ordained at the Cathedral and then inducted as 

the Vicar of Walgett/Collarenebri.  Since his arrival George has been busy doing 

funerals, held a rally in Collarenebri, conducted Bible Studies by zoom but Covid-19 

has largely impacted ministry plans for 2020.  He reports that he is plodding along. 

 

Ministry plans at Coledale have also been impacted by COVID-19.  Rod and Jum have 

maintained contact with the community through visiting and delivering meals.  Rod is 

hopeful of finding a person to be the next Aboriginal Ministry trainee for the South 

Tamworth Parish. 

 

St Peter’s South Tamworth is currently in the process of purchasing a block of land in 

Coledale right next door to Aunty Lucy’s where we have been meeting for the past 8 

years. This is to secure the long-term future of that work and to provide an outdoor all-

weather Aboriginal ministry gathering place. We are excited about the opportunities 

that having a special purpose venue will bring in that community. Thank God that the 

money to purchase the land has come together so quickly and pray for the necessary 

funds to clear and start work on the project in the coming months. 

 

Dixie Skuthorpe continues to build bridges into the Uralla Aboriginal community by 

assisting families in distress, visiting and providing meals and providing children with 

Bible resources during COVID-19. 

 

The Sub-Committee was hoping to conduct an Indigenous Ministry Training Day again 

this year but for the coronavirus.  However, it continues to work on a new strategic plan 

for Indigenous Ministry in the Armidale Diocese and plan training for 2021. 

 

The issue of ongoing funding to support current and future Indigenous ministry 

initiatives is a concern for both the Sub-committee and the Diocesan Council.  The sub-
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committee would encourage interested Christians to consider giving generously to the 

Indigenous Ministry Initiatives Fund.                    

 

The Committee continues to look for ways of promoting the vision of Indigenous 

ministry in the Diocese, to encourage Christians to be proactive in reaching out with the 

gospel in their local communities, and to help parishes think about what they can do in 

Indigenous ministry.  Please pray for the Committee in this task. 

 

Rev. Brian Kirk 

On behalf of the Committee 
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North Kigezi Partnership 2020 
Synod Report

THE NORTH KIGEZI PARTNERSHIP EXISTS TO SUPPORT GOSPEL WORKERS IN THE NORTH 
KIGEZI DIOCESE TO MAKE DISCIPLE-MAKING DISCIPLES OF CHRIST.

The North Kigezi partnership exists between the Anglican Diocese of Armidale and the Church Of 
Uganda in North Kigezi with the purpose “to equip, encourage and support Gospel Workers in the 
North Kigezi Diocese (NKD) in their efforts to make ‘Disciple-Making Disciples of Christ’.”  The 
partnership offers Christians in the Anglican Diocese of Armidale an avenue of enacting Christ’s 
mission, support and care into a global context, in an organised way.


The North Kigezi Partnership Committee meets 4-6 times a year in the Calrossy Drawing room. 
We would like to thank Calrossy for making this room available and providing us with great 
morning teas to support this ministry. We would also like to thank the Diocesan Accountant who 
keeps looks after all the financial administration and makes sure financial support ends up in the 
right places.  
The committee: 
• Bob and Sue Boland, ( Bishop Benon’s visit 

logistics (Uganda, and Aus visa primary 
contact)  and Sunday School Training) 


• David and Anita Thomas, Newmans Prayer 
advocates, Education Officers, and 
Compliance Managers for ACNC Charity 
Governance and Compliance


• Sharon Kirk - Library Project team leader, 
transport logistics.


• Joe and Jenny Goldsworthy - Bishop 
Benon’s visit logistics (Australia) Library 
Project and editorials, ACNC Policy author, 
policy curriculum author.


• Nick Stone CMS Liaison


• Erin Carter Nextgen Logistics, Bishop 
Benon’s visit assistant logistics and Library


• Simon Carter Chair


Short term committee members for surge 
capacity are 

• Nextgen Team Leader (Darrell Parker)

• Helen and Colin Pearce (event coordinator 

for Bishop’s visit)


External Contacts 
Bishop Benon Magezi	+256 782 561 217

Rev. Enoch Karamuzi	+256 772 954 677

Rev. Brian Muhereza 	+256 750 752 655 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Nextgen  
While Nextgen 2021 is been cancelled until the COVID-19 virus comes under control, Scott 
Dunlop writes regarding Nextgen from January this year. 


Uganda Next Gen 2020 went very well, with 165 delegates attending.  It was very 
encouraging to see the majority of the conference run by Ugandans, including 23 leaders 
now serving on the Uganda Next Gen team.  Because of the large number of Ugandan 
leaders, our 2 training days for them before the conference was very strategic in further 
equipping them to run the conference in the future. 


Team Devotions 
For unity and taking the team to the next level this suggestion was given by senior 
Ugandan team members: Meet with Ugandan and Aussie team at 8-8.30am at the start of 
each day at the conference site for devotions and prayer. 


Training Days 
Hold 2 days of training for the team again as it worked well – Friday and Saturday.  The 
following program was followed:  bible talks; MTS discussion papers (DP7.01, DP7.07, 
DP3.02, DP4.05 – extra training papers were in booklet but not discussed that could be 
used in the future); conference details planning; strand group leaders planning time; and 
prayer.  At training days, we ran through the strand passages with the whole team, 
highlighting key issues in context, content, etc, to get everyone on the same page in their 
understanding and to help the less experienced Strand Leaders. This is highly 
recommended in the future.

Also No safari day would be the recommendation – reason:  good team attendance at 
Safari on Thursday, but not as good attendance at Friday and Saturday training days.  In 
future, just have the 2 training days with a special meal in evening for the whole team.  
Also, extra travelling for Aussies caused us to be very tired.
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Strand Leaders 
Not all Strand Leaders are suitable to have Trainees and Helpers.  Some people can just 
be a Strand Leader and others Strand Leaders and Trainer or Coach of a team, who have 
Trainee and Helper.  Please see below recommendations on individuals.


Preaching in the Conference 
The best preachers who use the Next Gen 
model should be used in the confrence.  
This didn’t happen this year, but need to 
keep an eye on this in the future.




Training the Uganda Team through the year 
Brian suggested meeting for training and planning at the Bible college for 2 – 3 days 
training in May and November.  Benon said happy to do this and Enoch very keen to see 
happen – definitely follow this up with Enoch.




Team Leader 
It has been good for 
the team leader to not 
run a Strand Group but 
to visit the Strand 
Groups, mentor 
leaders and get the big 
picture of how the 
Strand Groups are 
going. 


Male And Female 

Strand Leaders 
Brian commented that priority needs to be given to train males, who are teachers and 
clergy.  As many females have been trained and then have had to drop out, due to getting 
married and having children.


Bishop support of Conference 
The Bishop freeing up clergy to attend and serve in the Conference worked well this year 
and needs to be asked for each year.
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King Snake & Promise 
The Ugandan team taught this in sessions and did a good job.  Needs to be taught each 
year.


Bridge to Life 
The Bridge to Life gospel outline was taught in the session and could be taught by the 
Ugandans in the future.


Strand Groups 

Training was completed to the trainee leader and helper, along with identifying 
further delegates that could be trained in 2022 

Workshops 
Bible studies were done in workshop time – Monday to Wednesday.  These were very 
critical and highly recommended in the future for the following reasons:  

• To model a bible study and bible study leadership (many Ugandans still have never 

attended a bible study)

• It is good times for pastoral conversations to happen in smaller groups

• It gives them some bible studies to do with others (and many do use with others)


Bible Studies in the Diocese 
It would greatly help the Next Gen conference, as well as peoples knowledge of God’s 
word and godliness, if regular Bible Studies were established in parishes; for youth at 
their fellowship groups, but also for adults if possible.  Enoch is keen for this to happen 

Mentor/ 
Feedbac
k 
Coach

Strand 
Leader

Co 
Leader

Group 
Type

Strand 
Group

Trainee 
Leader

Helper

Scott / Jo Brian Ronald Clergy 1   

‘’ Andrew Peter K Mixed 2 Pellan Noah

‘’ Lawrenc
e

Isabella Mixed 1 Andrew 
Mwijuka

Hannington

“ Seth Patricia Mixed 1 Dan Allan

 Peggy Amelia D Women’s 1 Sandrah

 Lisa N Fiona Women’s 1 Laureatte

 Simon R Alison R Clergy 2 Dickson  

 Peter T Julie T Mixed 1 Moses Makky

 “ Enoch  Mixed 1 Desmus Nicholas
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and announced it in the conference. I shared that I would be happy to help with bible 
study resources for this, for example, Gunnedah’s 6 year Youth Bible Study program that 
has been developed.


Morning and Evening Sessions in the Conference 
Aussies gave 3 Bible talks and taught Bridge to Life Gospel presentation, gave 2 
testimonies and prayed 3 times, everything else was done by the Ugandans.  This trend 
needs to continue.  Although Ugandans need to be encourage to use the model and 
guidelines for Christ centred testimonies in the booklet.  Also, see above comments about 
preachers in the conference.

The Team feedback and prayer time from 3:30-4pm for the whole team was very helpful 
for giving feedback to Ugandan’s that had served.


Skits 
Request from Ugandan’s to still do skits in the future with Ugandan team doing them.


Conclusion:

The fruits of Next Gen are having a significant influence in the wider Diocese with a 
number of key Senior Diocesan positions now filled by former Next Gen graduates.  God 
continues to bless the partnership between our two Diocese, with this year’s conference 
resulting in many things to give Him thanks and praise for.


 

The Newmans in Partnership with CMS.  
Andrew and Margie in Rukingiri report that they are still 
being affected by COVID-19. At the time of writing (6th 
August) there are 1213 confirmed cases and 5 deaths. 
While they hit 100 days of strict lockdown at the beginning of 
July the restrictions are easing gradually. Now they can drive 
their vehicle with a max of 4 people, public taxis and busses 
can now drive with 50% capacity and boda bodas (motor 
bike taxis) can carry a passenger but with strict rules. 
School, Universities and churches are still closed until 
September at least.  

There is an upside to the pandemic, while the students have not been able to attend the 
Bible College, The Deputy Principal (Brian Muhereza) has set up a Library Task Force 
which has been able to complete classifying the 3600 existing titles into the Dewey System 
with subject headings and call numbers. ︎︎︎︎︎ ︎︎ ︎︎ ︎︎︎︎︎︎ ︎︎︎︎ ︎︎ ︎︎︎︎ ︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎ ︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎︎ ︎︎︎ ︎︎︎︎ ︎︎︎ 
︎︎︎︎︎︎The Newmans have also been assisting Bishop Benon with food distribution, assisting with the 
Health Care Workers Task Force through the COVID Pandemic and providing video footage for us 
to keep us informed. 
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Language Learning:

It is a joy to read the Bible with our language helpers each lesson. We've seen the power and 
importance of language: The Lord speaking creation then wonderfully fulfilling his spoken promises 
of redemption in the Living Word, Jesus, our Saviour. As we learn the language and culture, we 
yearn for our words and life to communicate the Life and Hope of Jesus to our friends here in 
Uganda just as He has spoken and acted so richly towards us 

Language learning can sometimes take up 
to 6 hours/day. 


Language Laughs: 

Our mistakes : 
amakara = charcoal, amakari = urinate. 

Oops!! 
enshu = house, enshuwu = hippo. 

Oops!! 
tera shani = draw, tera = to beat someone. 

Mega-Oops!!! 


Please Give Thanks for.  
• The Lord’s provision that they are witnessing in 

the lives of people in Rukingiri

• The Solid progress with developing the Bible 

College Library

• Our enjoyment of the growing relationships with members of the 

Library Task Force


Please pray for: 
• Those who have had no income for so long

• restful and refreshing time  of leave that started in August 

• The many local, hopeful but tired gospel workers in North Kigezi Diocese. 

• Perseverance in language and culture learning

• That the 4000 books from Australia reach the library.
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Bishop’s Revival Convention 
Just before 2019 Synod, Bishop Benon hosted a “Revival Convention”. These Revival 
Conventions celebrate the East African Revival in the 1920s and 1930s. In Uganda and Kenya 
these conventions occur every 4 years or so. 




Bishop Rick, Janene, Simon and his son 
Nathan travelled to Rukingiri on the invitation of 
Bishop Benon to participate in the Bishop’s 
Revival Convention. The Bishops convention 
had around 8000 attendees and was an 
encouraging and privilege to be part of. 

A Revival Convention we were told is a special 
convention that happens once every fifteen 
years where the thrust is to prompt a response 
to Christ in the people. 

This year Bishop Benon wanted to not only see 
people come to know Christ, but to also help 
his people to deepen their roots in Christ. 
Bishop Benon used the passage from 
Colossians 2:6-7 as a challenge for people to 
grow in Christ.  Colossians 2:6 So then, just as 
you received Christ Jesus as Lord, continue to 
live your lives in him, 7 rooted and built up in 
him, strengthened in the faith as you were 
taught, and overflowing with thankfulness. 
(NIV). 


Bishop Benon had guest speakers talking on themes like “helping young people grow and be 
strengthened in Christ”, “putting down deep roots for Christ in the ever changing world - 
Technology” and “Finishing the race well with roots in Christ”. He also had invited the Archbishop 
of Uganda and Bishops from neighbouring diocese and Kenya.
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Rick was able to speak as the main Bible teacher and taught through three talks outlining the 
redemption in Christ, the supremacy of Christ, the wisdom comfort and life that is found in Christ, 
the foolishness of taking ‘journeys into the darkness’ and the thankfulness we can have to God for 
Christ and his work. 


Rick spoke to around 10,000 
participants and was also televised 
on local media for the occasion. 


One highlight was particularly during 
the second talk the congregation 
broke into song four times during the 
talk. It was quite a wonder to see 
and hear. 


Simon was able to speak on 
Technology and spent most of his 

talk encouraging thinking theologically about Facebook. Around 70% of Ugandans have access 
to internet, the majority of these through a device like a phone. 93% use Facebook and spend 
65% of their time on the internet on Facebook. 


Simon talked through some of the good things 
about social media but then spoke about the 
traps and pitfalls that are present. Andrew 
Kanunarra reported that he heard many people 
talking about the content after the talk, and Enoch 
also broadcast the talk on the radio. 


Many people came to Christ and gave their 
testimonies at the convention. We were a little 
taken aback at this practise but it seemed that 
everyone present was comfortable. We were a 
little in the dark at what was happening during the 
testimonies as all the testimonies were in 
Runyankole, but from what we gleaned there was 
generally an outline of sin, then repentance and 
their new found trust in Christ. 


During the week we stayed at Bishop Patrick and Mama 
Eva’s house and we were very well looked after. We found it wonderful to have time with Patrick 
and Eva in a relaxed atmosphere. We certainly were spoilt and thanked God for their generosity 
while we stayed there.  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Library Project 
As of time of writing (6 Aug) the pallets of books are meant to be in transit from Kampala to 
Rukingiri. There have been some obstacles with initial exemption of import duties, then changes 
of legislation mid journey to include import duties, then issue of Tax Identification Number 
paperwork, because of the new duties, then reissue of TIN paperwork, Customs duties, and then 

reissue of custom notes as it 
seems some paperwork was 
lost and emails back and forth! 
But, in God’s providence we 
believe they are all taken care 
of and the books are on the 
way to Rukingiri . 


The books that were donated 
were palletised at the end of 
November and sailed on the  
OOCL Brisbane on the 21st 
January arriving in Mombassa 
via Singapore on the 16th Feb.  


They were held in Mombassa 
for a few weeks just as COVID 
was starting in Africa, then 
trucked to Kampala where they 
have been held while all the 
paperwork was processed.


God willing, they arrive in 
Rukingiri this week!


Ministry Workers Support 
As I mentioned before, churches are closed in Uganda which has meant that ministry workers like 
clergy and lay readers, are without a stipend for them to pastor their local congregations and the 
situation is going to continue, even when churches may open sometime in September.


As a diocese, we want to continue to support gospel ministry in NKD so now we need to dig deep 
and keep churches open. 


The first element of our support, is called 
“Connect and Pray”. This element seeks to 
help us pray for ministry workers in NKD 
and encourage them. I’m asking for 
everyone to go online to our diocese 
website, and register to pray for a ministry 
worker. Alternately, contact your Vicar with 
your details and ask for them to help you 
be put in contact with someone to pray for 
and encourage in NKD. Bob and Sue will 
get your details and provide you a picture, 
and some contact details and some 
instructions from me, to connect and pray 
for a ministry worker in NKD.
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The second element of our medium 
term support, is how we support 
practically gospel ministry in NKD.  
The issue now, is that ministry 
families in NKD are struggling to 
work out how to sustain their 
pastoral ministry that they are 
called to on a stipend of 1 million 
shillings for the rest of the year 
($300 AUD). The lack of stipend 
raises the very real question of how 
do gospel ministers continue to do 
gospel ministry and also support 
their family?  In a very real sense, 
while they will strive to pastorally 
care for those around them, a lot of 
their time will be spend trying to 
raise food for themselves and their 
families. 


What we are proposing is that we 
put together a "ministry workers 
support package”. Its a package 
that’s not supposed to be their 
normal stipend, but will allow the 

122 ministry workers to exercise their pastoral ministry and support their family through a time of 
hardship. Think of it like our Job Keeper package, however its us doing the support, so think of it 
as a “Ministry Workers Keeper Package”


The Package

For $300 Per month, for 5 months up until Christmas


1. 160 minutes a day of talk time - so pastors can call members of their parishes or the people 
entrusted to their care.

2. Data sufficient to access the Ridley external studies “Bible Overview” for their own ministry 
development. plus any digital contact they need for parish ministry. 

3. Food for their family along with electricity and water. 

4. Medical supplies along with soap, and

5. Some discretionary funds as ministry families are called on to care for the vulnerable in their 
pariahs, from the aids orphans whose goat dies, to the widow who loses her roof in the wind.


Can I encourage you, to firstly apply to connect and pray for a ministry family, and then consider if 
you or your Parish can support, out of our wealth, gospel ministry in NKD during COVID-19.
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April / May COVID-19 Urgent Food Appeal. 
As you are no doubt aware, the COVID-19 pandemic has hit African countries quite hard. The 
main pain for third world countries has been felt in the lock-down’s to stop the spread of the 
disease as hospitals are unable to care for the type of respiratory conditions COVID-19 carries. 


The Diocese of Armidale responded to the crisis in North Kigezi Diocese by mobilising aid for 
Bishop Benon to work with Andrew Newman in food distribution for families at risk and Health 
Care workers. Each target group received 7Kg Beans and 20kg maize flour. The following table 
shows the result of the food distribution for $47,575 AUD sent to NKD. 


Peninah, the Diocesan Treasurer wrote saying “Thank you very much, this has been the biggest 
food relief Donation and everyone in the North Kigezi will remember this partnership with the 
Diocese of Armidale, for your kind mobilisation and support”.  


Target Group Number UGX 109,571,846

Child Headed Families 463

Single Parent Familie 120

Elderly 125

Disabled parents 237

Ministry workers 400

Kisiizi Hospital patients and 
staff

560

Police and local defence 328

Other Health 176

Total Families 2409 105,701,846

Fuel 4 trucks over 5 days 3,100,000

Staff food allowance 10 staff over 5 days 770,000
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Reporting on Anglican Diocese of Armidale’s External Conduct 
Standards (Still in draft form)
The Australian Federal Government is concerned about charities operating overseas which are 
subject to particular increased risks and has introduced the External Conduct Standards to 
minimise these risks.


External Conduct Standards are a set of standards that govern how a registered charity must 
manage its activities and resources outside Australia. They require charities to take reasonable 
steps to ensure appropriate standards of behaviour, governance and oversight when undertaking 
activities and/or providing funding overseas. They are intended to promote transparency and 
provide confidence that resources sent, or services provided, overseas reach legitimate 
beneficiaries and are used for legitimate charitable purposes. The Standards also seek to protect 
vulnerable people overseas.


Christian Churches that operate outside Australia, even if it is a minor part of their work, must 
comply with these standards (ECS). As such the Diocese of Armidale must ensure that its 
overseas missionary endeavours comply with these standards.

The four External Conduct Standards are:
1. Standard 1: Activities and control of resources (including funds) this covers the way a 

charity manages its activities overseas and how it is required to control the finances and 
other resources it uses overseas.  

Standard 1 requires a charity to:
• take reasonable steps to ensure its activities outside Australia are consistent with its not-for-

profit purpose and character; 

• maintain reasonable internal control procedures to ensure that funds, equipment, supplies 
and other resources are used outside Australia in a way that is consistent with the charity's 
not-for-profit purpose and character; and 

• take reasonable steps to ensure that funds, equipment, supplies and other resources 
provided to third parties outside Australia (or within Australia for use outside Australia) are 
applied: 
- in accordance with the charity’s not-for-profit purpose and character: and 


	 -with reasonable controls and risk management processes in place.
• It also requires charities to comply with Australian laws as specified in the Regulation. A 

charity is required to maintain reasonable internal control procedures to ensure compliance 
with these laws. 

2. Standard 2: Annual review of overseas activities and record keeping.  this covers the 
requirements for a charity to obtain and keep sufficient records for its overseas activities. 

• The records must include information necessary for a charity to be able to prepare a 
summary of its activities and related expenditure outside Australia on a country-by-country 
basis. 

• The records must be kept for each financial year in which a charity: 

• operates outside of Australia, or 

• gives funds or other resources to third parties for use outside Australia. 

3. Standard 3: Anti-fraud and anti-corruption this covers the requirements for a charity to 
have processes and procedures that work to combat fraud and corruption in its overseas 
operations.  

Standard 3 requires a charity to take reasonable steps to:
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• minimise any risk of corruption, fraud, bribery or other financial impropriety by its 
Responsible Persons, employees, volunteers and third parties outside Australia; and 

• identify and document any perceived or actual material conflicts of interest for its 
employees, volunteers, third parties and Responsible Persons outside Australia. 

4. Standard 4: Protection of vulnerable individuals - this covers the requirements for a 
charity to protect the vulnerable people that it works with when conducting its overseas 
operations. 

Standard 4 requires a charity to take reasonable steps to ensure the safety of vulnerable 
individuals overseas. It applies where individuals are:

• being provided with services or accessing benefits under programs provided by the charity 
(whether directly or through collaboration with a third party); 

• engaged by the charity, or a third party in collaboration with the charity, to provide services 
or benefits on behalf of the charity or third party. 

Annual Reporting of an Overseas Missionary Endeavour. Funds 
Transferred Out of Australia

I trust that this report has been helpful and can direct your prayers to give thanks for our 
brothers and sisters who share with us in the Lord’s work. Please don’t hesitate to contact 
Simon if you would like to see any of the financial reports that are prepared by the diocese 
on behalf of the North Kigezi Partnership or the handover documents, training documents 
and doctrinal affirmation and adherence documents.  

In Christ 
Simon Carter 
on behalf of the North Kigezi Diocese Partnership Committee. 

Target Date Funds Authorised Receipts Method

Bible College 
Bursary

18/12/2019 $6132.15 Diocesan 
Council / SC

y Bank Transfer

Nextgen 
Conference

18/12/2019 $13797.33 DC / SC y Bank Transfer

Mothers Union 18/12/2019 $370.00 DC / SC held (COVID) Bank Transfer

Bus Hire for 
NGU

18/12/2019 $1149.78 DC /SC y Bank Transfer

Pastor 
Support

18/12/2019 $1379.73 DC /SC TBC Bank Transfer

Food Relief 1 15/05/2020 $10019.71 DC 9th May /
SC 13 May

y Bank Transfer

Food Relief 2 20/05/2020 $37555.29 DC 9th May/ 
SC 17th May

y Bank Transfer

Brian 18/052020 $50.00 SC 17th May y Bank Transfer

TOTAL $70453.99
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Diocesan Council Report
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

The Diocesan Council presents its report on the Anglican Diocese of Armidale for the financial year ended 30
June 2020.

1. General Information

Diocesan Council Members

The names of the Diocesan Council Members in office at any time during, or since the end of, the year are:

Names Position Appointed/Resigned

Rt Rev. Rick Lewers Bishop

Rev. Brian Kirk Vicar - General

Very Rev. Chris Brennan Dean of the Cathedral

Ven. Geoffrey Hearne Archdeacon

Ven. Darrell Parker Archdeacon

Ven. Adam Draycott Archdeacon

Ven. Simon Waller Archdeacon

Ven. Bernard Gabbott Archdeacon

Mr Michael Easton Chancellor

Mr David White Diocesan Solicitor

Rev. Christopher Pears Registrar

Rev. Tory Cayzer Chairman of Committees

Rev. Scott Dunlop Elected by Synod - Clergy

Rev. Simon Carter Elected by Synod - Clergy

Rev. Rod Chiswell Elected by Synod - Clergy

Rev Danny Morris Elected by Synod - Clergy Resigned 26/11/2019

Mr Paul Harvey Elected by Synod - Lay

Mr James Levingston Elected by Synod - Lay

Mrs Lesley Hathway Elected by Synod - Lay

Mr Andrew McClenaghan Elected by Synod - Lay Elected 29/09/2019

Mr James Kahl Bishop's appointment Appointed 26/11/2019

Mr Andrew Draney Bishop's appointment Appointed 23/07/2019

Diocesan Council Members have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report
unless otherwise stated.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Diocesan Council during the financial year was to manage the affairs of the
Anglican Diocese of Armidale, in concert with the Bishop, between Synods to ensure that the Diocese's
mission and vision is realised.

No significant changes in the nature of the Anglican Diocese of Armidale's activity occurred during the
financial year.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 60 - 40 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 to the
Directors of Anglican Diocese of Armidale

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2020, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in section 60-40 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Ltd

Margaret van Aanholt
Director

26 August 2020

Tamworth NSW 2340

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional p +61 2 6768 4500 F +61 2 6766 4322
Standards Legislation

PKF International Limited administers a network of legally independent firms which carry on separate businesses under the PKF name.
PKF International Limited is not responsible for the acts or omissions of individual member firms of the network.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

Dividends & Imputation credits received 694,443 1,152,087

Net gain/(loss) on sale of investments (409,542) (716,437)

Interest 3 8,656 12,638

Other income 3 1,125,726 1,143,875

Administrative expenses (475,207) (414,192)

Clergy support (28,975) (29,858)

Office of the Bishop (279,524) (257,307)

Other Ministries (82,678) (230,694)

Parish Support (296,234) (209,869)

Support Ministries (196,704) (183,180)

Trust Expenses (24,342) (102,675)

Other expenses 4 (204,256) (260,098)

Fund management fees (10,461) (68,422)

Profit / (Loss) before income tax (179,098) (164,132)

Income tax expense - -

Profit / (loss) for the year (179,098) (164,132)

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Gain/(Loss) on the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets (2,077,037) 405,301

Total comprehensive income for the year (2,256,135) 241,169

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5         459,300         453,998

Trade and other receivables 6 297,983 1,203,161

Loans 7 29,960 11,751

Other assets 9 15,120 29,455

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 802,363 1,698,365

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Loans 7 - 35,000

Investments 8 14,665,586 16,516,273

Property, plant and equipment 10 3,689,322 3,546,831

Investment property 11 574,395 574,395

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 18,929,302 20,672,498

TOTAL ASSETS 19,731,665 22,370,863

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 12 199,848 282,784

Employee benefits 13 49,305 25,555

Other liabilities 14 145,689 32,099

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 394,841 340,439

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits 13 29,897 44,258

Other liabilities 14 1,880,590 1,989,661

Borrowings 15 586,000 1,300,000

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,496,487 3,333,919

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,891,328 3,674,358

NET ASSETS 16,840,337 18,696,505

EQUITY

Retained Earnings 919,371 945,467

Asset Revaluation Reserves 1,900,356 1,900,356

Investment Revaluation Reserves (100,355) 1,567,140

Diocesan Funds 16 14,120,965 14,283,542

TOTAL EQUITY 16,840,337 18,696,505

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

2020

Retained
Earnings

$

Diocesan
Funds

$

Asset
Revaluation

Surplus

$

Investment
Revaluation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2019 945,467 14,283,542 1,900,356 1,567,140 18,696,505

Loss for the year (179,098) - - - (179,098)

Transfers to / from Diocesan Funds 153,002 (153,002) - - -

Restate Funds to Liabilities held in Trust - (9,575) - - (9,575)

Movement in Fair Value of Available for
Sale Financial Assets - - - (2,077,037) (2,077,037)

Net realised loss for the year recognised in
the profit and loss statement - - - 409,542 409,542

Balance at 30 June 2020 919,371 14,120,965 1,900,356 (100,355) 16,840,337

2019

Retained
Earnings

$

Diocesan
Funds

$

Asset
Revaluation

Surplus

$

Investment
Revaluation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2018 2,350,814 13,032,633 1,900,356 445,402 17,729,205

Loss for the year (164,132) - - - (164,132)

Transfers to / from Diocesan Funds (1,241,215) 1,241,215 - - -

Restate Funds to Liabilities held in Trust - 9,694 - - 9,694

Movement in Fair Value of Available for
Sale Financial Assets - - - 405,301 405,301

Net realised loss for the year recognised in
the profit and loss statement - - - 716,437 716,437

Balance at 30 June 2019 945,467 14,283,542 1,900,356 1,567,140 18,696,505

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from dividends , interest and distributions 948,448 1,076,793

Payments to suppliers and employees (1,641,620) (1,711,581)

Receipts from Quota 570,265 563,093

Gifts and donations received 193,191 84,911

Receipts for service and other income 401,505 496,559

Receipts from rent 28,996 28,996

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 19 500,785 538,771

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments (1,812,460) (4,066,941)

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,586,111 2,866,963

Net (increase) / decrease in investments (170,122) (627,547)

Net cash used by investing activities (396,471) (1,827,525)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase / (decrease) in DDF loans & Trust Liabilities (100,395) 870,885

Net cash used by financing activities (100,395) 870,885

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held 3,919 (417,869)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 453,997 871,867

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 457,916 453,998

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

Introduction

The financial statements cover the Anglican Diocese of Armidale as an individual entity. The Anglican Diocese of
Armidale is a not-for-profit organisation.

The functional and presentation currency of the Anglican Diocese of Armidale is Australian dollars and is
rounded to the nearest dollar.

1 Basis of Preparation

In the Diocesan Council's opinion, the Anglican Diocese of Armidale is not a reporting entity since there are
unlikely to exist users of the financial report who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so
as to satisfy specifically all of their information needs. This special purpose financial report has been prepared to
meet the reporting requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure
requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB
108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, AASB 1048 Interpretations of Standards
and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.

The significant accounting policies disclosed below are consistent with the previous period unless otherwise
stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs unless
otherwise stated in the notes.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

The Anglican Diocese is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the Diocese is entitled to it.

Parish contributions towards Diocesan operating expenses such as superannuation, long service leave for clergy
and insurances are recognised in the year in which they are due. To the extent that they have not been
received, they are shown as an outstanding debtor.

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend revenue, including any imputation credits receivable, is recognised when the dividend has been
received.

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Anglican Diocese of Armidale is entitled to it.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Depreciation

Plant and equipment, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets useful life to the Anglican Diocese of
Armidale, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class
Depreciation
rate

Investment Properties Nil

Land and Buildings Nil

Furniture and Equipment 5 - 33%

Motor Vehicles 20 - 25%

Computer Equipment 33%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

Investment Property

Investment property is carried at fair value, determined annually by the Diocesan Council. Changes to fair value
are recorded in the investment revaluation reserve. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and of no future economic benefits. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the property is included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as other income/expenses.

Land & Buildings

Land & buildings include residential properties held for housing for ministry purposes and are carried at
independent market value. There is no depreciation on residential property buildings.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(e) Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Anglican Diocese of Armidale becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, the Anglican Diocese of Armidale classifies its financial assets into the following
categories, those measured at:

 amortised cost

 fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Anglican Diocese of
Armidale changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

 the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Anglican Diocese of Armidale's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(e) Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Equity instruments

The Anglican Diocese of Armidale has a number of strategic investments in listed entities over which are they do
not have significant influence nor control. The Anglican Diocese of Armidale has made an irrevocable election to
classify these equity investments as fair value through other comprehensive income as they are not held for
trading purposes.

These investments are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income
(Investment revaluation reserve). On disposal any balance in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to the profit or loss statement.

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other unrealised gains and losses are recognised in OCI.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets:

 financial assets measured at amortised cost

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Anglican Diocese of Armidale considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Anglican Diocese of Armidale's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

The Anglican Diocese of Armidale uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has
seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Anglican Diocese of Armidale uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

 the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Anglican Diocese of Armidale in full, without

recourse to the Anglican Diocese of Armidale to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

 the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Anglican
Diocese of Armidale in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied
using a probability weighted approach.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(e) Financial Instruments

Financial liabilities

The Anglican Diocese of Armidale measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs,
subsequently financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Anglican Diocese of Armidale comprise trade payables and other loans.

(f) Employee Benefits

Provision is made for the Anglican Diocese of Armidale's liability for employee benefits arising from services
rendered by employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly
settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.

Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the employee
may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using the G100 discount rates specifically
developed for the purpose of discounting employee benefits under AASB 119. Changes in the measurement of
the liability are recognised in profit or loss.

(g) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the
statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

3 Revenue and Other Income

2020

$

2019

$

Interest income

Interest received on investments 7,725 10,401

Interest received on loans 932 2,237

Total interest income 8,657 12,638

Other income

Distribution received - DDF 25,000 20,000

Quota Income 578,924 573,780

Rental income 28,996 28,996

- Contributions 62,997 9,554

- Non-recurring contribution from Associated
entity - Anglicare - 104,789

Federal Government Stimulus 62,500 -

DDF Administration Fee 35,828 -

Donations - Indigenous Ministry 27,501 -

Donations -Tamworth Hospital Chaplain 38,770 3,454

Uganda donations 126,920 84,911

CASI insurance contributions 18,815 18,864

Bush Church Association contribution 30,641 21,933

Youth funds & women's conference 40,662 50,643

Calrossy chaplain contributions 928 74,623

Other income 47,245 152,328

- Total other income 1,125,726 1,143,874
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

4 Result for the Year

Expenses

2020

$

2019

$

Depreciation:

Depreciation - Bishop 9,065 9,169

Depreciation - Admin 8,126 9,359

Depreciation - DPF 10,441 2,178

27,632 20,706

Settlements - 80,000

Other Expenses:

Uganda program 125,290 85,657

CASI insurance 36,032 56,402

Youth funds & women's conference 37,725 39,285

Calrossy chaplain expenses - 55,337

Other expenses 7,390 23,417

206,437 260,098

Employee Benefits

Wages and Stipends 693,448 701,982

Superannuation 76,354 67,572

Movements in leave provisions 36,045 9,066

805,847 778,620
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020

$

2019

$

Cash on hand 1,600 1,189

Cash at bank 235,937 340,735

Deposits at call 221,763 112,074

459,300 453,998

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash and Cash equivalents reported in the statement of cash flows are reconciled to the equivalent items in the
statement of financial position as follows:

2020

$

2019

$

Cash and cash equivalents 459,300 453,998

Credit card balance 12 (1,384) -

Balance as per statement of cash flows 457,916 453,998

6 Trade and Other Receivables

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Trade Receivables 114,120 109,556

Provision for impairment of trade
receivables (42,566) -

Franking Credits Due 197,929 371,617

GST Receivable 5,833 6,408

Interest receivable 22,667 1,580

Sundry Debtors - 714,000

297,983 1,203,161
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

7 Loans and Advances

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Loans -non- Interest bearing

Clergy/staff loans 19,944 8,403

Parish Loans 10,015 3,349

29,959 11,752

2020

$

2019

$

NON-CURRENT

Loans - interest bearing

Parish loans - 35,000

- 35,000

8 Financial Assets

Equity instruments - fair value through other comprehensive income

2020

$

2019

$

Listed investments, at fair value:

- Diocesan Investment Fund 10,861,669 12,472,915

- Bishopric Endowment Fund 107,888 110,891

- FR White / Rymbosa Fund 432,659 488,160

- Coventry Fund 1,925,832 2,021,469

Listed investments, at fair value - restricted use:

- Gillian Fraser Fund 1,337,539 1,422,838

14,665,587 16,516,273

9 Other Assets

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Prepayments 15,120 29,455
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

10 Property, Plant and Equipment

2020

$

2019

$

LAND AND BUILDINGS

Capital works in progress

Capital Works in Progress 16,507 2,597

Land and Buildings

At valuation 3,473,387 3,473,387

Total land and buildings 3,489,894 3,475,984

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture and Equipment

At cost 114,098 113,562

Accumulated depreciation (89,274) (78,994)

Total furniture and equipment 24,824 34,568

Motor Vehicles

At cost 51,346 51,346

Accumulated depreciation (23,818) (15,067)

Total motor vehicles 27,528 36,279

Computer Equipment

At cost             1,114              1,114

Accumulated depreciation           (1,114)            (1,114)

Improvements

At cost          155,676            -
Accumulated depreciation (8,600) -

Total improvements 147,076 -

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 3,689,322 3,546,831
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

10 Property, Plant and Equipment

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:

Capital
works in
progress

$

Land and
Buildings

$

Furniture
and

Equipment

$

Motor
Vehicles

$

Computer
Equipment

$

Total

$

Year ended 30
June 2020

Balance at the
beginning of year 2,597 3,473,387 34,568 36,279 - 3,546,831

Additions 16,507 155,676 536 - - 172,719

Disposals - written
down value (2,597) - - - - (2,597)

Depreciation
expense - (8,600) (10,280) (8,751) - (27,631)

Balance at the end
of the year 16,507 3,620,463 24,824 27,528 - 3,689,322

Refer to Note 20 for details of additional land and buildings controlled by the Diocese.

11 Investment Properties

2020

$

2019

$

34 Denne Street, Tamworth 574,395 574,395

12 Trade and Other Payables

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Trade payables 147,695 161,738

Accrued expenses 28,067 33,781

Sundry Creditors 13,350 80,000

Credit card balance 1,384 -

Other payables 9,352 7,265

199,848 282,784
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

13 Employee Benefits

2020

$

2019

$

Current liabilities

Provision for employee leave benefits 49,305 25,555

Non-current liabilities

Long service leave - Admin 6,709 1,911

Long service leave - Clergy 23,188 42,347

29,897 44,258

14 Other Liabilities

2020

$

2019

$

CURRENT

Clergy Ministry Accounts 30,529 27,099

Amounts received in advance 115,160 5,000

145,689 32,099

NON-CURRENT

Parish and Other Funds in Trust 1,880,590 1,989,661

15 Borrowings

2020

$

2019

$

NON-CURRENT

Secured liabilities:

Related party loans 586,000 1,300,000

Total non-current borrowings 586,000 1,300,000

16 Reserves

Diocesan Funds

The Diocesan Funds reserves represent management's estimate of movements and accumulated income for a
variety of projects and trust funds administered by the Diocese. The separation from retained earnings is for
internal management purposes only.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

17 Contingencies

Refer to Note 20.

18 Auditors' Remuneration

2020

$

2019

$

Remuneration of the auditor PKF NENW
Audit & Assurance Pty Ltd:

- audit of the financial records of the
Diocese 9,000 10,495

Accounting services provided by PKF New
England North West Pty Ltd (auditor
related entity);

- financial statements 5,000 6,775

- accounting support and advisory services 3,000 3,025

Total 17,000 20,295

19 Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

2020

$

2019

$

(Loss)/profit for the year (179,098) (164,132)

Cash flows excluded from profit attributable to operating
activities

Non-cash flows in profit:

- depreciation 27,631 20,707

- net loss/(gain) on sale of investments 409,542 716,437

Changes in assets and liabilities:

- (increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables 205,512 26,493

- increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 27,809 (57,875)

- increase/(decrease) in provisions 9,389 (2,859)

Cashflow from operations 500,785 538,771
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

20 Land and buildings held by related entities

In addition to the land and buildings recorded on the Diocese Balance Sheet, the Corporate Trustees exercise
responsibility on a large portfolio of other properties across the Diocese, used and occupied by its parishes,
clergy, administration and Anglican Schools.

The Corporate Trustees have overseen a number of mortgages with lending institutions to support borrowings
by the Anglican Schools in the Diocese. These are contingent liabilities of the Diocese.

The properties, excluding the Schools, were independently valued as at 30 June 2016 by Asset Val Pty Ltd at
their fair value for financial reporting purposes, and their reinstatement value for insurance purposes.

The Diocese total property portfolio, including those in note 10 above, is summarised below.

$

Land at independent value 30 June 2016 10,635,400

Buildings at independent value 30 June 2016 62,893,531

Land and buildings at independent value 17 May 2017 2,854,350

280 Moore Creek Road at cost 619,037

77,002,318

Land and buildings at fair value as at 31 December 2017;

Calrossy Anglican School – Land (valuation date 25 June 2015) 4,780,000

Calrossy Anglican School – Buildings (valuation date 25 June 2015) 24,635,000

Calrossy Anglican school - Right to use land 280 Moore Creek Road 714,000

Less accumulated depreciation (352,305)

Improvements at cost 27,865

29,804,560

The Diocese has contingent liabilities in the form of registered mortgages over some of the land and buildings
above. The borrowings have been incurred by the abovementioned Anglican Schools in consultation with the
Corporate Trustee. The facility limits are as follows;

$

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 8,500,000
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended 30 June 2020

21 Events occurring after the Reporting Date

The global COVID-19 pandemic has had a financial impact on the organisation during the financial year. As this
pandemic is still continuing, there is material uncertainity as to any financial effects since the end of the financial
year.

Except for the above, no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the Anglican Diocese of Armidale, the results
of those operations or the state of affairs of the Anglican Diocese of Armidale in future financial years.
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Anglican Diocese of
Armidale

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report of Anglican Diocese
of Armidale (the Diocese), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and the declaration by the Diocesan Council.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Diocese for the year ended 30 June 2020 is prepared, in
all material respects, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Diocese,'s financial position as at 30 June, 2020 and of its financial
performance for the year ended; and

(ii) complying with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of
our report. We are independent of the Diocese in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have
also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report
is prepared to assist the Diocese in to comply with the financial reporting provisions of the Corporate Trustees
Ordinance 2009 . As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of matter - Reserves

As set out in Note 16 of the financial report, the allocation of accumulated profits to and from retained earnings
and Diocesan Funds reserves is for internal management purposes only. Accordingly, we have not conducted
audit procedures on these movements or the individual balances. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional p +61 2 6768 4500 F +61 2 6766 4322
Standards Legislation

PKF International Limited administers a network of legally independent firms which carry on separate businesses under the PKF name.
PKF International Limited is not responsible for the acts or omissions of individual member firms of the network.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au

24

ADA FIN - 27



Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Anglican Diocese of
Armidale

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the the Diocese's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Diocese or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Diocese's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial
report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

 obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Diocese’s internal control;

 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by the Diocesan Council;

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional p +61 2 6768 4500 F +61 2 6766 4322
Standards Legislation

PKF International Limited administers a network of legally independent firms which carry on separate businesses under the PKF name.
PKF International Limited is not responsible for the acts or omissions of individual member firms of the network.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au
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Anglican Diocese of Armidale
ABN: 64 984 070 512

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Anglican Diocese of
Armidale

 conclude on the appropriateness of the Council's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that

may cast significant doubt on the Diocese's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related

disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,

future events or conditions may cause the Diocese to cease to continue as a going concern; and

 evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Diocesan Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Ltd

Margaret van Aanholt

22-24 Bourke Street, Tamworth

Dated this 27th day of August 2020

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional p +61 2 6768 4500 F +61 2 6766 4322
Standards Legislation

PKF International Limited administers a network of legally independent firms which carry on separate businesses under the PKF name.
PKF International Limited is not responsible for the acts or omissions of individual member firms of the network.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au
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BEF Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

     Trust Income 4,618

          BEF Income 4,754

          Gain on Sale of Assets (136)

Total Income 4,618

Gross Profit 4,618

Expense

     Office of the Bishop 280,141

          Office of the Bishop (108)

          Bishop 143,443

          Secretary (50% Contribution) 39,333

          Bishop's Assistant 97,474

     Trust Expenses 780

          BEF 780

Total Expense 280,922

Operating Profit (276,304)

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to BEF 136,844

     BEF Income Distributn-Internal 142,558

Total Other Income 279,402

Net Profit 3,098
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BEF - Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     Ord Minnett UMA Cash Acct-BEF 3,679

     BEF Assets Held in DIF 2,515,856

     BEF Assets Held in DIF-Contra 79,178

     BEF-Shares and Securities 107,888

     BEF-Credits Receivable 828

     BEF-Furn/Equip/Vehcls 27,527

     BEF-Land&Bldgs 1,150,000

Total Asset 3,884,956

Net Assets 3,884,956

Equity

     R&M - Bishopscourt-BEF 48,207

     R&M - 45 Lynches Road-BEF 39,758

     Trust Equity 3,796,992

Total Equity 3,884,956
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BSMF Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Gross Profit 0

Operating Profit 0

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to BSMF 5,710

     Trust Funds Received-BSMF 2,209

Total Other Income 7,919

Net Profit 7,919
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BSMF Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     BSMF Assets Held in DIF 104,874

     BSMF Assets Held in DIF-Contra 15,503

Total Asset 120,377

Net Assets 120,377

Equity

     Bishops Sustaing Ministy Fnd-M BSMF 75% 99,980

     Bishops Sustaing Ministy Fnd-H BSMF 25% 20,397

Total Equity 120,377
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BUDRES Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Gross Profit 0

Operating Profit 0

Other Income

     DIF Income Distribn to BUDRES 25,349

     BUDRES Income Distn-Internal (151,225)

Total Other Income (125,876)

Net Profit (125,876)
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BUDRES Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     BUDRES Assets Held in DIF 465,559

     BUDRES Assets Held DIF-Contra (125,876)

Total Asset 339,683

Net Assets 339,683

Equity

     BUDRES - Budget Equity Reserve 339,683

Total Equity 339,683
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CASI Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

     CASI Insurance 18,815

     CASI CONT NT 43

     CASI Contribution Lightning Ridge 129

Total Income 18,986

Gross Profit 18,986

Expense

     CASI Premium-CASI 33,557

Total Expense 33,557

Operating Profit (14,571)

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to CASI 33,202

     CASI Income Distn-Internal (2,560)

Total Other Income 30,642

Net Profit 16,071
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CASI Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     CASI Prepayment 11,279

     CASI Assets Held in DIF 607,233

     CASI Assets Held in DIF-Contra 7,352

Total Asset 625,864

Net Assets 625,864

Equity

     CASI Insurance I Reserve 625,864

Total Equity 625,864
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CEF Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to CEF 6,344

     CEF Income Distn-Internal (2,500)

Total Other Income 3,844

Net Profit 3,844
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CEF Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     CEF Assets Held in DIF 116,519

     CEF Assets Held in DIF-Contra 3,844

Total Asset 120,363

Net Assets 120,363

Equity

     CEF Opening Balance-Captl Ac 25,369

     CEF Opening Balance-Incom Ac 91,150

     CEF Currnt Yr Spl/Def-Inc Ac 3,844

Total Equity 120,363
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Coventry Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

     Coventry Income 87,458

     Profit on Sale of Assets-COV (37,329)

Total Income 50,129

Gross Profit 50,129

Expense

     Safe Ministry/Professionl Stds-COV 13,267

     Safe Ministry-Travel-COV 328

     Safe Ministry-Sundries-COV 848

     Safe Min-LSL/AL/TIL-COV 2,812

     Safe Min Co-ordinator-Salary-COV 6,464

     Safe Min Co-ordinator-Super-COV 822

     Redress Expenses-COV 2,150

     Salary-Redress-COV 1,504

     Superannuation-Redress-COV 143

     Coventry 3,802

Total Expense 32,139

Operating Profit 17,990

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to COV 2,834

     COV Distribution-Internal 6,500

Total Other Income 9,334

Net Profit 27,324
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Coventry Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     Ord Minnett UMA Cash Acct-COV 13,808

     Westpac Coventry Est. Trst Acc 20

     COV Assets Held in DIF 52,056

     COV Assets Held in DIF-Contra (107,767)

     Coventry-Shares and Securities 1,895,832

     Suspense - COV 30,000

     Coventry-Credits Receivable 21,353

Total Asset 1,905,301

Net Assets 1,905,301

Equity

     Coventry-Equity 1,905,301

Total Equity 1,905,301
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DPF Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

     ANI Rent-DPF 23,800

     Other Income-DPF 533

Total Income 24,333

Gross Profit 24,333

Expense

     Property Exps-DPF 8,434

     Depreciation-DPF 10,441

     ISR&General Ins-DPF 788

Total Expense 19,663

Operating Profit 4,670

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to DPF 11,122

     DPF Income Distn-Internal (3,000)

Total Other Income 8,122

Net Profit 12,792
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DPF Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     DPF Assets Held in DIF 204,260

     DPF Assets Held in DIF-Contra (103,879)

     Denne St Office Furn/Fittg-DPF 21,775

     Accum Depn Denne St-DPF (17,766)

     280 Moore Crk Rd F&F-DPF 3,356

     Accum Depn MC Rd F&F-DPF (336)

     34 Denne St Tamworth-DPF 698,805

     Revaln 34 Denne St Tamwth-DPF (124,410)

     280 Moore Crk Rd Tamworth-DPF 619,037

     280 Moore Crk Rd Improvements-DPF 155,676

     280 Moore Creek Rd Imp Acc Depn-DPF (8,600)

Total Asset 1,447,919

Liability

     Loan-280 Moore Crk Rd Tam-DPF 586,000

Total Liability 586,000

Net Assets 861,919

Equity

     R&M - 34 Denne St-DPF 28,563

     DPF Opening Balance 944,974

     DPF Current Year Surplus/Defic 12,792

     DPF Asset Revaluation Reserve (124,410)

Total Equity 861,919
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FRW Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

     Trust Income 24,369

     Profit on Sales of Asseets - FRW (30,123)

Total Income (5,753)

Gross Profit (5,753)

Expense

     UNE MTS Training - Grant-FRW 33,000

     Trust Expenses 2,850

Total Expense 35,850

Operating Profit (41,603)

Other Income

     Trust Funds Received-FRW 690

     DIF Income Distributn to FRW 43,466

     FRW Distribution-Internal 8,000

Total Other Income 52,156

Other Expense

     R&M Expense-FRW 5,147

Total Other Expense 5,147

Net Profit 5,405
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FRW Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     Ord Minnett UMA Cash Acct-FRW 10,275

     FRW Assets Held in DIF 798,295

     FRW Assets Held in DIF-Contra 53,976

     FR White-Shares and Securities 432,659

     FR White-Credits Receivable 5,842

     FR White/Rymbosa-Land&Bldgs 1,720,857

Total Asset 3,021,904

Net Assets 3,021,904

Equity

     R&M - Rymbosa-FRW 44,447

     R&M - White Avenue-FRW 31,528

     FR White/Rymbosa-Equity 2,945,929

Total Equity 3,021,904
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INDIG Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Gross Profit 0

Expense

     Aboriginal Ministry NATSIAC-INDIG 2,000

Total Expense 2,000

Operating Profit (2,000)

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to INDIG 560

Total Other Income 560

Net Profit (1,440)
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INDIG Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     INDIG Assets Held in DIF 10,284

     INDIG Assets Held n DIF-Contra (1,440)

Total Asset 8,844

Net Assets 8,844

Equity

     Diocesan Aborigines Fund  C INDIG 11,003

     Diocesan Aborigines Fund  I INDIG (2,158)

Total Equity 8,844
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PAF Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

     Parish Support 36,649

Total Income 36,649

Gross Profit 36,649

Expense

     Parish Assistance-Contingency 48,458

     Parish Assistnce-Mungindi 6,310

     Parish Assistnce-Walgett Travl 2,635

Total Expense 57,403

Operating Profit (20,754)

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to PAF 26,798

     PAF Distn-Internal 5,500

Total Other Income 32,298

Net Profit 11,544
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PAF Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     PAF Assets Held in DIF 492,173

     PAF Assets Held in DIF-Contra 11,554

     Loans 3,349

Total Asset 507,076

Net Assets 507,076

Equity

     PAF Opening Balance-Capital Ac 115,747

     PAF Opening Balance-Income Ac 379,775

     PAF Current Yr Surpl/Def-Incom 11,554

Total Equity 507,076
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THC Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Income

Total Income 38,770

Gross Profit 38,770

Expense

Total Expense 84,905

Operating Profit (46,135)

Other Income

Total Other Income 46,227

Net Profit 92
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THC Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Liability

     Ministry A/c - THC-Batley 8,591

Total Liability 8,591

Net Assets (8,591)

Equity

     THC Opening Balance 1,448

     THC Current Year Surplus/Defic 92

Total Equity 1,540
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VWR Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Gross Profit 0

Expense

     Clergy Training-Ordinands-VWR 3,213

     Clergy Conference-VWR 2,213

     Clergy Training/Sector Confs-VWR 3,173

Total Expense 8,600

Operating Profit (8,600)

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to VWR 51,386

     VWR Income Distn-Internal (33,000)

Total Other Income 18,386

Net Profit 9,786
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VWR Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     VWR Assets Held in DIF 943,761

     VWR Assets Held in DIF-Contra 9,786

Total Asset 953,547

Net Assets 953,547

Equity

     Trust Equity 953,547

Total Equity 953,547
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WBY Income Statement — Armidale Anglican
Diocese

JUL 2019 - JUN 2020

Actuals

Gross Profit 0

Expense

     Aboriginal Ministry - Grant-WBY 19,493

     Stipend -  NT-WBY 20,001

     Allowances MEA - NT-WBY 4,241

     Superannuaiton - NT-WBY 3,400

     CASI - NT-WBY 171

     LSL - NT-WBY 399

     Travel - NT-WBY 1,028

     Entertainment Allowance - NT-WBY 461

Total Expense 49,196

Operating Profit (49,196)

Other Income

     DIF Income Distributn to WBY 92,443

Total Other Income 92,443

Net Profit 43,247
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WBY Balance Sheet — Armidale Anglican Diocese

JUN 2020

Jun 2020

Asset

     WBY Assets Held in DIF 1,697,821

     WBY Assets Held in DIF-Contra 43,247

Total Asset 1,741,068

Net Assets 1,741,068

Equity

     Worboys-Equity 1,741,068

Total Equity 1,741,068
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Board Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The Board presents their report on the Diocesan Development Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2020..

General information

The names of Board members in office at any time during, or since the end of, the year are:

Names Position

Mr Timothy McGhie Chairman

Mr Hugh Castleden

Mr James Kahl

Rev Christopher Pears

Mr Paul Harvey

Board members have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated.

Principal activities and significant changes in nature of activities

The principal activities of Diocesan Development Fund during the financial year were:

 receive funds from entities within the Anglican Diocese of Armidale and individual investors;

 make loans to Diocesan entities, clergy and Diocesan staff; and

 to invest any surplus in cash, securities and interest-earning securities to provide a return to the Diocese and its

investors.

Objective

The objective of the Diocesan Development Fund is to support the mission of the Anglican Diocese of Armidale by funding
the development of facilities within the Diocese and to make grants to the Diocese out of the surplus generated from its
activities for such purposes as the Diocesan Council may from time to time determine.

Strategies for achieving the objectives

To achieve this objective, the Diocesan Development Fund has adopted the following strategies:

 to accept funds from the Diocesan entities and other investors;

 to use these funds as a basis for lending to Diocesan bodies, clergy and staff; and

 to invest or re-invest funds not immediately required for loans.

The strategy is intended to realise a surplus out of which a dividend can be paid to the Diocese to support its work.
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Auditor's Independence Declaration under Section 60 - 40 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 to the
Members of Diocesan Development Fund

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2020, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in section 60-40 of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Ltd

Margaret van Aanholt
Director

24 August 2020

Tamworth NSW 2340

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved p +61 2 6768 4500 f +61 2 6766 4322
approved under Professional
Standards Legislation

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does
not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

Revenue 3 289,705 256,997

Distributions (25,000) (20,000)

Net loss on disposal of investments 5,977 (10,147)

Interest paid on investments 4 (132,428) (129,890)

Other expenses 4 (64,552) (60,715)

Surplus before income tax 73,702 36,245

Income tax - -

Surplus for the year 73,702 36,245

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met

Net fair value movements for available-for-sale
financial assets (263,672) 30,169

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of
tax (263,672) 30,169

Total comprehensive income for the year (189,970) 66,414

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 5 98,170 433,136

Trade and other receivables 6 162,828 57,954

Other assets 7 - 426

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 8 4,684,070 2,770,716

Financial assets at amortised cost 9 1,983,190 2,457,232

TOTAL ASSETS 6,928,258 5,719,463

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 10 38,128 43,946

Amounts owed to investors 11 5,970,551 4,561,043

Provisions 12 - 4,925

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,008,679 4,609,914

NET ASSETS 919,579 1,109,549

EQUITY

Investment Revaluation Reserve (173,552) 90,118

Retained Earnings 1,093,131 1,019,431

919,579 1,109,549

TOTAL EQUITY 919,579 1,109,549

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020

Retained
Earnings

$

Investment
Revaluation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2019 1,019,430 90,119 1,109,549

Increase in reserves during the year - (263,672) (263,672)

Surplus for the year 73,702 - 73,702

Balance at 30 June 2020 1,093,132 (173,553) 919,579

2019

Retained
Earnings

$

Investment
Revaluation

Reserve

$

Total

$

Balance at 1 July 2018 983,185 59,950 1,043,135

Increase in reserves during the year - 30,169 30,169

Surplus for the year 36,245 - 36,245

Balance at 30 June 2019 1,019,430 90,119 1,109,549

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note

2020

$

2019

$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from interest, dividends and
distributions 275,369 274,995

Payments to suppliers and
employees (185,320) (107,491)

Interest paid (132,428) (129,889)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities 16 (42,379) 37,615

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,042,631 1,499,987

Purchase of investments (3,213,568) (550,077)

Net cash used in investing activities (2,170,937) 949,910

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:

Net increase/(decrease) in deposits
and loans made 1,878,350 (744,325)

Net cash provided by/(used in)
financing activities 1,878,350 (744,325)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents held (334,966) 243,200

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year 433,136 189,936

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year 5 98,170 433,136

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The financial statements cover Diocesan Development Fund as an individual entity. The Diocesan Development Fund is a
not-for-profit organisation established under an instrument by the Anglican Diocese of Armidale. The Diocesan
Development Fund is a registered charity under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission (ACNC).

In accordance with the Ordinance for the fund, there is a requirement to prepare separate financial statements.

The functional and presentation currency for the Diocesan Development Fund is the Australian dollar.

The Diocesan Development Fund financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation

In the Directors' opinion, the Diocesan Development Fund is a non-reporting since there are unlikely to be any users
who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy specifically all of their information
needs. This special purpose financial report has been prepared to meet the reporting requirements of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement
requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements
of AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 107 Statement of Cash Flows, AASB 108 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, AASB 1048 Interpretation of Standards and AASB 1054
Australian Additional Disclosures.

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Income Tax

No provision for income tax has been raised as the Diocesan Development Fund is exempt from income tax
under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(b) Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when the business is entitled to it.

Interest revenue

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method.

Dividend revenue

Dividends are recognised when the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(d) Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Diocesan Development Fund becomes party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition,the Diocesan Development Fund classifies its financial assets into the following
categories, those measured at:

 amortised cost

 fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Diocesan Development
Fund changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:

 the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

 the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Diocesan Development Fund's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise loans receivable,
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Gain or loss
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income

Equity instruments

The Diocesan Development Fund has a number of strategic investments in listed entities over which are they
do not have significant influence nor control. The Diocesan Development Fund has made an irrevocable
election to classify these equity investments as fair value through other comprehensive income.

9



Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(d) Financial instruments

Financial assets

These investments are carried at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income (financial asset reserve).

Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.

Impairment of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets:

 financial assets measured at amortised cost

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significant since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Diocesan Development Fund considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Diocesan Development Fund's historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

The Diocesan Development Fund uses the presumption that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has
seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Diocesan Development Fund uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when:

 the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Diocesan Development Fund in full, without

recourse to the Diocesan Development Fund to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

 the financial assets is more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Diocesan
Development Fund in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied
using a probability weighted approach.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the expected credit loss
model. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is
recognised. Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are
estimated and recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Diocesan Development Fund measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs,
subsequently financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Diocesan Development Fund comprise amounts owed to investors and trade
payables.

10



Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

3 Revenue and Other Income

2020

$

2019

$

- Interest received - loans and investments 106,378 92,019

- Dividend income 183,327 164,978

Total Revenue 289,705 256,997

4 Result for the Year

The result for the year was derived after charging / (crediting) the following items:

2020

$

2019

$

Other expenses include:

- Audit and accounting fees 6,775 5,445

- Salaries and wages 31,334 25,906

- Superannuation contributions 3,066 2,461

- Management fees 23,384 18,443

- Legal fees - 2,204

- Other expenses - 6,256

64,559 60,715

Interest expense paid:

- Community Saver Accounts 62,290 64,725

- Term investments 709 6,346

- Parish Investments 21,235 29,775

- Nominated interest distribution 17,326 17,549

- Interest expense - Monthly Saver Accounts 23,070 3,035

- Historical investments 7,799 8,460

Total finance costs 132,429 129,890

5 Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020

$

2019

$

Cash at bank 98,170 433,136

6 Trade and Other Receivables

2020

$

2019

$

Trade receivables 119,179 26,165

Franking credits due 43,649 31,789

Total current trade and other receivables 162,828 57,954
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

7 Other Assets

2020

$

2019

$

Prepayments - 426

8 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Listed investments - fair value

Listed securities 4,684,070 2,770,716

9 Financial assets at amortised costs

2020

$

2019

$

Loans and advances - Secured

Parish loans 224,950 240,611

Clergy and staff loans 1,172,240 916,621

Corporate Trustees of Diocese of Armidale 586,000 1,300,000

1,983,190 2,457,232

10 Trade and other payables

2020

$

2019

$

Trade payables 29,955 35,018

Sundry payables and accrued expenses 8,173 8,928

38,128 43,946

11 Amounts owed to investors

2020

$

2019

$

Investments - Parishes 917,756 1,120,176

Investments - Interest bearing 415,679 321,332

Investments - Deposits, Investor Funds 26,412 26,412

Investments - Community Saver Investor Funds 3,174,686 2,553,842

Investments - Monthly Saver Investment Funds 1,436,018 303,948

Investments - Short term - 235,333

5,970,551 4,561,043
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Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

12 Employee Benefits

2020

$

2019

$

Current liabilities

Provision for employee benefits - 3,167

Non-current liabilities

Long service leave - 1,758

13 Auditors' Remuneration

2020

$

2019

$

Remuneration of the auditor: PKF NENW Audit &
Assurance Pty Ltd

- auditing and accounting fees 6,750 5,000

14 Contingencies

In the opinion of the Board, the Diocesan Development Fund did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2020 (30 June
2019:None).

15 Related Parties

(a) The organisation's main related parties are as follows:

The Diocesan Development Fund is an organisation established under an instrument by the Anglican Diocese
of Armidale. The Corporate Trustees of the Diocese of Armidale are the Trustees of the Fund. The Diocesan
Development Fund's main related parties include clergy, and their immediate family members, and other
parishes of the Anglican Diocese.

(b) Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than
those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Balance
outstanding

Payments/
(receipts)

Owed to the
organisation

Related parties

Parish loans - 224,950

Clergy and staff loans - 1,172,240

Corporate Trustees loan - (586,000)

Interest received from loans 106,378 -

Distribution to Anglican Diocese (25,000) -

13



Diocesan Development Fund

ABN: 81 462 509 988

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

16 Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of result for the year to cashflows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

2020

$

2019

$

Surplus for the year 73,702 36,245

Cash flows excluded from surplus attributable to
operating activities

Non-cash flows included in the surplus:

- net (gain)/loss on disposal of investments (5,977) 10,147

Changes in assets and liabilities:

- (increase)/decrease in trade and other
receivables (104,560) (15,768)

- increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (619) 4,720

- increase/(decrease) in provisions (4,925) 2,271

Cashflows from operations (42,379) 37,615

17 Events after the end of the Reporting Period

The global COVID-19 pandemic has had a financial impact on the organisation during the financial year. As this
pandemic is continuing there is material uncertainty as to any financial effects since the end of the financial year.

Except for the above, no other matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or could significantly affect the operations of the organisation, the results of those operations or
the state of affairs of the organisation in future financial years.
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Diocesan Development Fund

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Diocesan Development
Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report of Diocesan Development
Fund (the Trust), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the statement by the Board.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Trust for the year ended 30 June 2020 is prepared, in all material
respects,including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Diocesan Development Fund's financial position as at 30 June 2020 and of its financial
performance for the year ended; and

(ii) complying with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report is prepared
to assist the Diocesan Development Fund to comply with the financial reporting divisions of the Diocesan Development
Fund Ordinance 2014. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our report is intended
solely for the Diocesan Development Fund and should not be distributed to or used by parties other than the Diocesan
Development Fund. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Members of the Board

Members of the Board are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission ACt 2012
and for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a
true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, Members of the Board are responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using a going concern basis of accounting
unless the Members of the Board either intend to liquidate the Diocesan Development Fund or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved p +61 2 6768 4500 f +61 2 6766 4322
approved under Professional
Standards Legislation

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does
not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au
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Diocesan Development Fund

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Diocesan Development
Fund

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. Our objectives are to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individual
or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this
financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial report.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Trust’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Trust’s internal control.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Diocesan Development Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business activities within the
Diocesan Development Fund to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved p +61 2 6768 4500 f +61 2 6766 4322
approved under Professional
Standards Legislation

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does
not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au

17



Diocesan Development Fund

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Diocesan Development
Fund

We communicate with Members of the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Ltd

Margaret van Aanholt

22-24 Bourke Street, Tamworth

Dated this 26th day of August 2020

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited Tamworth
ABN 39 082 276 506 22-24 Bourke Street, PO Box 1900
Registered Auditor 306435 Tamworth NSW 2340
Liability limited by a scheme approved p +61 2 6768 4500 f +61 2 6766 4322
approved under Professional
Standards Legislation

PKF NENW Audit & Assurance Pty Limited is a member firm of the PKF International Limited family of legally independent firms and does
not accept any responsibility or liability for the actions or inactions of any individual member or correspondent firm or firms.
Web www.pkf-nenw.com.au PKF Australia www.pkf.com.au
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QUOTA OUTCOMES 2019-2020 

AND 

BUDGET 2020-2021 
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Name Amount Unpaid Paid

Armidale Anglican Parish 57,756$     57,756$     
Ashford/Delungra Anglican Parish 1,680$     1,680$     -$         
Baradine Anglican Parish 3,804$     3,804$     
Barraba Anglican Parish 9,612$     9,612$     -$         
Bingara Anglican Parish 5,400$     5,400$     -$         
Boggabilla Anglican Parish 4,284$     4,284$     
Boggabri Anglican Parish 10,368$     10,368$     
Bundarra Anglican Parish 4,392$     4,392$     
Cockburn Valley Anglican Parish 12,612$     12,612$     
Emmaville Anglican Parish 2,904$     2,904$     
Glen Innes Anglican Parish 18,636$     18,636$     
Gunnedah Anglican Parish 22,764$     22,764$     
Guyra Anglican Parish 10,164$     2,954$     7,210$     
Inverell Anglican Parish 25,152$     25,152$     
Lightning Ridge Anglican Parish 8,628$     8,628$     
Manilla Anglican Parish 10,752$     10,752$     
Moree Anglican Parish 28,080$     28,080$     
Mungindi Anglican Parish 7,596$     7,596$     -$         
Narrabri Anglican Parish 23,256$     23,256$     
Nundle Anglican Parish 4,644$     4,644$     
Oxley Vale Anglican Parish 14,340$     14,340$     
Quirindi Anglican Parish 18,744$     18,744$     
South Tamworth Anglican Parish 73,716$     73,716$     
Tambar Springs Anglican Parish 2,172$     2,172$     
Tamworth St Johns Anglican Parish 27,552$     27,552$     
Tenterfield Anglican Parish 12,168$     12,168$     
Tingha Anglican Parish 840$        840$        
UNE Chapel Anglican Parish 48,936$     48,936$     
Uralla Anglican Parish 15,912$     15,912$     
Walcha Anglican Parish 13,920$     13,920$     
Walgett Collarenabri Anglican Parish 9,900$     9,900$     -$         
Warialda Anglican Parish 11,436$     5,436$     6,000$     
Wee Waa Anglican Parish 12,660$     12,660$     
West Tamworth Anglican Parish 43,644$     43,644$     
Total 578,424$       42,578$     535,846$       

Armidale Anglican Diocese

Quota Payments 2019 -20
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ARMIDALE $58,272 $23,309
ASHFORD/DELUNGRA $1,968 $787
BARADINE $3,132 $1,253
BARRABA $9,204 $3,682
BINGARA $4,440 $1,776
BOGGABILLA $3,348 $1,339
BOGGABRI $11,724 $4,690
BUNDARRA $5,748 $2,299
COCKBURN VALLEY $12,540 $5,016
EMMAVILLE $2,976 $1,190
GLEN INNES $17,172 $6,869
GUNNEDAH $22,572 $9,029
GUYRA $10,104 $4,042
INVERELL $25,620 $10,248
LIGHTNING RIDGE $8,196 $3,278
MANILLA $11,232 $4,493
MOREE $28,452 $11,381
MUNGINDI $6,636 $2,654
NARRABRI $24,180 $9,672
NUNDLE $4,908 $1,963
OXLEY VALE $14,052 $5,621
QUIRINDI $17,868 $7,147
SOUTH TAMWORTH $77,304 $30,922
TAMBAR SPRINGS $2,136 $854
TAMWORTH $28,212 $11,285
TENTERFIELD $11,796 $4,718
TINGHA $984 $394
UNE CHAPEL $51,264 $20,506
URALLA $15,468 $6,187
WALCHA $13,656 $5,462
WALGETT $8,592 $3,437
WARIALDA $10,368 $4,147
WEE WAA $13,080 $5,232
WEST TAMWORTH $48,312 $19,325

TOTAL $585,516 $234,206

QUOTA ASSESSMENT AND MISSIONARY TARGET 2020-21
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Actuals Budgets Variance 2020-21 Budget Variance

140,211 0 140,211 119,466 (20,745)

7,669 0 7,669 7,200 (469)

35,828 0 35,828 39,100 3,272

10,400 0 10,400 0 (10,400)

18,815 0 18,815 18,000 (815)

5,000 0 5,000 0 (5,000)

62,500 0 62,500 55,166 (7,334)

62,940 0 60,590 68,240 5,300

21,400 0 21,400 29,000 7,600

420 0 420 39,240 38,820

38,770 0 38,770 0 (38,770)

2,350 0 2,350 0 (2,350)

81,975 0 81,975 103,048 21,073

2,059 0 2,059 10,000 7,941

36,649 0 36,649 4,000 (32,649)

43,267 0 43,267 89,048 45,781

27,501 50,000 (22,499) 50,000 22,499

27,501 50,000 (22,499) 50,000 22,499

343,361 642,976 (299,614) 570,911 227,550

4,754 174,045 (169,291) 8,622 3,868

24,369 47,500 (23,131) 26,062 1,693

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

87,458 95,283 (7,825) 65,888 (21,570)

27,535 20,000 7,535 25,000 (2,535)

584,455 245,148 339,307 421,543 (162,912)

24,333 61,000 (36,667) 23,796 (537)

(409,542) 0 (409,542) 409,542

578,924 578,242 682 585,516 6,592

578,924 578,242 682 585,516 6,592

1,234,912 1,271,218 (38,656) 1,497,181 262,269

1,234,912 1,271,218 (56,712) 1,497,181 262,269

  The Link

Total Income

Gross Profit

  Worboys Income

  V Wright Income

  Coventry Income

  DDF Income

  DIF Income

  DPF Income

  Profit on Sale of Assets

  Contributions Income

  Quota Income

  Parish Support

  New Ministries

  PAF Contributions

  Ongoing Ministries

  Other Ministries

  Indigenous Ministry

  Trust Income

  BEF Income

  FR White/Rymbosa Income

  DDF Administration

  Diocesan Committees

  CASI Insurance

  Provincial Synod Income

  Government Assistance

  Support Ministries

  Special Religous Education

  Safe Ministry/Professionl Stds

  Chaplains

Income Statement  — Armidale Anglican Diocese
Actual V Budget 2019/20 V Budget 2020/21

Jul 2019 -Jun 2020

Income

  Administration

  Registry

Jul 2020 -Jun 2021
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Income Statement  — Armidale Anglican Diocese
Actual V Budget 2019/20 V Budget 2020/21

Jul 2019 -Jun 2020 Jul 2020 -Jun 2021

280,782 300,393 (19,611) 298,439 (17,657)

143,443 156,200 (12,757) 159,000 (15,557)

39,333 27,845 11,488 28,066 11,267

97,365 111,348 (13,983) 110,373 (13,008)

641 5,000 (4,359) 1,000 (359)

538,103 444,202 93,901 529,709 8,394

395,275 366,102 29,173 385,708 9,567

7,263 10,000 (2,737) 9,600 (2,337)

41,031 0 41,031 39,101 1,930

8,454 3,500 4,953 3,500 4,954

33,557 0 33,557 45,000 (11,443)

20,551 20,000 551 15,000 5,551

3,076 1,600 1,476 1,500 1,576

28,896 28,000 896 30,300 (1,404)

0 15,000 (15,000) 0

28,975 51,500 (22,525) 49,200 (20,225)

3,213 20,000 (16,787) 20,000 (16,787)

5,386 5,000 386 7,200 (1,814)

19,939 25,000 (5,061) 20,000 (61)

0 1,500 (1,500) 0

436 0 436 2,000 (1,564)

196,704 229,440 (32,736) 210,717 (14,014)

25,000 25,000 25,000 0

12,500 13,500 (1,000) 13,500 (1,000)

14,431 0 14,431 10,000 4,431

24,540 30,000 (5,460) 24,000 540

102,650 135,940 (33,290) 113,300 (10,650)

17,582 25,000 (7,417) 24,917 (7,335)

296,914 235,000 61,914 413,500 (116,586)

52,634 67,000 (14,366) 77,000 (24,366)

67,161 0 67,161 154,000 (86,839)

35,000 30,000 5,000 32,500 2,500

99,541 63,000 36,541 75,000 24,541

42,578 75,000 (32,422) 75,000 (32,422)

58,797 160,250 (101,453) 135,000 (76,203)

2,000 2,250 (250) 2,000 0

0 100,000 (100,000) 50,000 (50,000)

33,000 33,000 0 33,000 0

20,000 23,000 (3,000) 20,000 0

3,797 2,000 1,797 30,000 (26,203)

37,653 0 37,653 46,720 (9,067)

780 0 780 600 180

2,850 0 2,850 1,200 1,650

3,802 0 3,802 5,340 (1,538)

10,558 0 10,558 31,000 (20,442)

19,663 0 19,663 8,580 11,083

1,437,927 1,420,785 17,142 1,683,285 (245,358)

(203,015) (149,567) (73,855) (186,104) 16,911

   DPF

Total Expense

Operating Profit

   Indigenous Ministry

   UNE MTS Training-FRW/RYM

   Partnerships

   Redress Payments & Expenses

   Trust Expenses

   BEF

   FR White/Rymbosa

   Coventry

   DIF

   The Link & Diocesan Website

   Parish Support

   Evangelism & New Parishes

   Partner Parishes

   Evangelism-O/S Student Minstry

   Parish Assistance

   Unpaid Assessment Allocation

   Other Ministries

   Aboriginal Ministry NATSIAC

   Clergy Removals

   Clergy Travel-Isolated Parish

   Clergy Welfare

   Support Ministries

   Archdeacons-Contrbns to Parish

   Diocesan Youth Unit

   Special Religous Education

   Safe Ministry/Professionl Stds

   Chaplains

   Diocesan Committees

   CASI Insurance

   Contingencies

   Provincial Synod Assessment

   General Synod Assessment

   General Synod Travel & Accom

   Clergy Support

   Clergy Training-Ordinands

   Clergy Traing-Study/Clrgy Conf

   Office of the Bishop

   Bishop

   Secretary (50% Contribution)

   Bishop's Assistant

   Examining Chaplain

   Administration

   Registry

   Diocesan Synod/DC

   DDF Administration

Expense
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2019-20 2020-21

Quota $578,242 $585,516

Diocesan Investment Fund $149,318

Bishopric Endowment Fund $174,045 $94,108

FR White $47,500 $53,215

Amy Worboys $100,000 $67,749

Vic Wright $58,000 $32,101

Coventry $95,283 $67,659

Diocesan Property Fund $30,744

CASI $38,741

Other $367,715 $378,030

Total 1,420,785$     $1,497,181

DIOCESE OF ARMIDALE

SYNOD 2020

DRAFT DIOCESAN BUDGET 20-21

SOURCE OF FUNDS
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Budget 20/21 Budget 19/20

Operating Cashflow

Operating Income 1,497.0 1,271.0 

Operating Expense 1,683.0 1,420.0 

Net Cashflow (186.0) (149.0) 

Investment

Moore Creek Rd House 160.0 

Archive Centre 25.0 

Verna St Renovation 60.0 

Garibaldi St Carport 20.0 30.0 

Lynches Rd Laundry 8.5 

Total Investments 88.5 215.0 

Finance

Total - - 

Net (274.5) (364.0) 

ARMIDALE ANGLICAN DIOCESE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET
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ORDINANCES 
ORD 2 PROVINCIAL SYNOD TRIBUNAL ORDINANCE 2018 ACCEPTANCE 

ORDINANCE 2020 

ORD 6 INVESTMENT ORDINANCE 1970 AMENDING ORDINANCE 2020 

ORD 9 THE ARMIDALE SCHOOL ORDINANCE 2020 
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EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM – PROVINCIAL SYNOD TRIBUNAL ORDINANCE 2018 

ACCEPTANCE ORDINANCE 2020 

 

Section 55 of the Constitution of the Anglican Church of Australia makes provision for a 

Provincial Tribunal. The role of the Provincial Tribunal is to hear and determine appeals from 

any determination of any diocesan tribunal of the province in cases where an avenue of 

appeal to the Provincial Tribunal is provided for in the ordinances of that Diocese. 

It appears that until late 2018, the current legislation for the NSW Provincial Tribunal was the 

Tribunal Ordinance 1892 and that this ordinance had not been considered for many years, if 

ever. However a problem arose when there was a matter concerning a member of the clergy 

in another diocese in NSW in which, in accordance with the procedures of that diocese, the 

matter was referred to the NSW Provincial Tribunal. The problem was that there were no 

known members of the Provincial Tribunal because no members had been elected by the 

Provincial Synod in living memory. 

In response to this situation, in November 2018 the NSW Provincial Synod passed the 

Provincial Tribunal Ordinance 2018. The ordinance provides for members to be elected by 

the Standing Committee of the Diocese of Sydney (2 members) and the Diocesan Council of 

each of the other seven NSW dioceses (1 member per diocese). 

Clause 8 of the constitution of the Anglican Church of Australia makes it clear that an 

ordinance of the Provincial Synod generally only comes into effect when accepted by an 

ordinance of the Synod of the relevant diocese. It is recommended that the Synod accepts 

the Provincial Synod Tribunal Ordinance 2018 so that the Armidale Diocesan Council can 

elect a member to serve on the tribunal if it is required. The Provincial Synod Tribunal will 

have no jurisdiction in our Diocese except where an ordinance of our Diocese provides for 

that. Currently there are no such provisions in any of our ordinances. 

 

The Registrar 

14 August 2020 
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1 

DIOCESE OF ARMIDALE 

PROVINCIAL SYNOD TRIBUNAL ORDINANCE 2018 ACCEPTANCE ORDINANCE 

NO. OF 2020 

An Ordinance for accepting an Ordinance passed by the Provincial Synod of New South 

Wales of the Anglican Church of Australia in 2018, entitled “Provincial Synod Tribunal 

Ordinance 2018” so as to give it effect within the Diocese. 

WHEREAS it is expedient to accept the “Provincial Synod Tribunal Ordinance 2018” passed 

by the Provincial Synod of New South Wales of the Anglican Church of Australia,  

NOW the Synod of the Diocese of Armidale assembled in pursuance of the powers conferred 

on it by the Constitution for the good government of the Anglican Church of Australia within 

the State of New South Wales ordains and rules as follows:- 

1. That the “Provincial Synod Tribunal Ordinance 2018” passed by the Provincial Synod

of New South Wales and as set out hereto in the Schedule of this Ordinance, shall be

accepted by Diocese of Armidale.

2. This Ordinance may be cited and known as the “Provincial Synod Tribunal Ordinance

2018 Acceptance Ordinance 2020.”

SCHEDULE 

1. Provincial Synod Tribunal Ordinance 2018

ORD - 3



PROVINCIAL SYNOD TRIBUNAL ORDINANCE 2018 

AN ORDINANCE to provide for the Provincial Tribunal of New South Wales. 

WHEREAS Section 55 of the Constitution of this Church makes provision for a Provincial 
Tribunal to consist of the Metropolitan as President or a Deputy President appointed by him 
and at least two other members as may be prescribed by Ordinance of Provincial Synod to be 
elected in accordance with such Ordinance. 

NOW the Provincial Synod Ordains as follows to implement such constitutional provisions. 

1. This Ordinance may be cited as the Provincial Tribunal Ordinance 2018.

2. The Provincial Tribunal shall consist of the Metropolitan as President, a Deputy President
appointed by the Metropolitan either for a fixed term or otherwise and a panel of eight
qualified persons.

3. The eight qualified persons shall be elected as follows:
(a) Two by the Standing Committee of the Diocese of Sydney; and
(b) One each by the Diocesan Council of each other diocese;

Such appointment should be made for four years, provided that a person sitting in a part 
heard case may continue to conclude such a case. 

4. The Tribunal shall normally convene as a group consisting of the Deputy President and
two members of the panel, who have been elected by different dioceses, nominated by
the President.

5. No person who is an officer or member of a diocese shall sit on an Appellate reference
involving a person resident or licensed in such diocese.

6. A qualified person is a lay person eligible to be appointed as a member of the Appellate
Tribunal or a person in priest's orders for at least seven years.

7. No member of the Appellate Tribunal or Special Tribunal may sit on the Provincial
Tribunal. No diocesan bishop may sit on the Provincial Tribunal.

8. A quorum of any sitting of the Provincial Tribunal shall be two persons.

9. Decisions of the Provincial Tribunal shall be by a majority. In the case of an equality of
differing opinions, the view of the Deputy President shall prevail.

10. A casual vacancy in the panel shall be filled by those with authority to appoint or elect.

11. The Provincial Tribunal shall have jurisdiction in accordance with Section 55(2) and (3)
of the Constitution of the Anglican Church of Australia provided that jurisdiction under
Section 55(3) shall not be exercised except as prescribed by ordinance of the synod of
the relevant diocese.

12. The Provincial Tribunal may make any order that the tribunal from which any appeal is
brought was competent to make

13. The Provincial Tribunal may make any order for costs as may be appropriate.

Schedule 1
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14. The President shall convey any determination of the Provincial Tribunal to the relevant
Diocesan Bishop.

15. The Standing Committee of Provincial Synod may make such regulations to implement
this Ordinance.

16. The Deputy President and not less than three members of the panel may make rules of
procedure, not inconsistent with the Ordinance or any regulations, for the efficient
conduct of its business.

17. The Tribunal Ordinance 1892 is repealed.

I CERTIFY that the Ordinance as printed is in accordance with the Ordinance as reported. 

Chairman of Committees 

WE CERTIFY that the foregoing Ordinance was passed by the Provincial Synod of New South 
Wales this 14th day of November 2018 

Secretaries of Provincial Synod 
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EXPLANATORY MEMORANDUM – INVESTMENT ORINDNACE 1970 AMENDING 

ORDINANCE 2020 

 

The Investment Ordinance 1970 is the ordinance which authorises the Registry to establish 

the Diocesan Investment Fund, a fund made up of the consolidation of many other funds, 

this consolidation allowing for efficiency and better returns in investments. The 1970 

ordinance dictates that the constituent funds receive a share of the income earned by the 

Consolidated Fund, but quite explicitly says that they don’t share in any capital movements. 

Some fifty years later, capital movement is a significant part of the earnings (or potential 

losses of a fund), and under the existing arrangements, when significant capital losses are 

incurred, it is possible that the total value of the constituent funds exceeds the value of the 

funds in the Consolidated Fund. 

This amendment is proposed as a much fairer system whereby investors in the Consolidated 

Fund share fully in the good times that the Consolidated Fund experiences, and also share 

in any losses that it incurs. This amending ordinance makes the appropriate changes to 

bring this about. 

 

The Registrar 

14 August 2020 
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DIOCESE OF ARMIDALE 

 

INVESTMENT ORDINANCE 1970 AMENDING ORDINANCE 2020 

 

1. Name of Ordinance 
 

This Ordinance shall be known as the Investment Ordinance 1970 Amending 

Ordinance 2020. 

 

2. Long Title 
 

An Ordinance to amend the existing Investment Ordinance 1970 such that funds 

invested in the Diocesan Consolidated Trust Fund share in the realised and unrealised 

capital movement of the fund. 

 

3. Ordinance 
 

The Synod of the Diocese of Armidale hereby ordains and rules that the Investment 

Ordinance 1970 be amended as follows:  

 

3.1 that clause 2 be replace with a new clause 2 which reads: 

 

“Separate and distinct accounts of each and every such Fund, showing the 

balance of the same, shall be kept and the income and reaslised and unrealised 

capital movement accruing from the several investments made of the whole of 

the Consolidated Trust Fund shall be divided among each and every such Fund 

in the proportion borne by each such separate Trust or other Diocesan Fund to 

the whole Consolidated Trust Fund, after deducting from such receipts the 

expenses of management, investment and administration.” 

 

3.2 that clause 3 be removed, with the subsequent renumbering of clauses 4 and 5. 

 

 

3.3 that the new clause 4 be amended to read: 

 

“This Ordinance shall be cited and known as the “Diocese of Armidale 

Investment Ordinance 10 of 1970-2020”.” 

 

 

4. Name of Amended Ordinance 

 

This Ordinance may be cited and known as the ‘Investment Ordinance 1970 

Amending Ordinance 2020’ and the Ordinance so amended shall become known as 

the ‘Investment Ordinance 1970-2020’. 
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Proposed Form of the Amended Ordinance 

 

DIOCESE OF ARMIDALE 

 

INVESTMENT ORDINANCE 1970-2020  

 

 

WHEREAS the capital moneys of the respective trusts and other Diocesan funds 

particularized in the Schedule hereto have heretobefore been separately invested in various 

securities by the Corporate Trustees of the Diocese of Armidale. 

 

AND WHEREAS it has become expedient to create a Consolidated Trust Fund for the 

investment of such moneys the Synod of the Diocese of Armidale in pursuance of the powers 

conferred upon it by the Constitutions for the management and good government of the 

Church of England within the State of New South Wales ordains and rules as follows :- 

 

1. The Corporate Trustees shall hold, manage and invest as one Consolidated Trust Fund 

all capital moneys of the funds particularized in the Schedule hereto and of such other 

funds as may hereafter be directed to such Consolidated Trust Fund by the Synod of 

the Diocese. 

2. Separate and distinct accounts of each and every such Fund, showing the capital 

balance of the same, shall be kept and the interest and profits received and income and 

realised and unrealised capital movement accruing from the several investments made 

of the whole of the Consolidated Trust Fund shall be divided among each and every 

such Fund in the proportion borne by each such separate Trust or other Diocesan Fund 

to the whole Consolidated Trust Fund, after deducting from such receipts the expenses 

of management, investment and administration. 

3. Any balance of the capital of the Consolidated Trust Fund arising out of any 

revaluation or reorganization of the investments in the Consolidated Trust Fund shall 

be held for such purposes as the Synod of the Diocese of Armidale may direct. 

3. Where the provisions of any other Ordinance relating to the investment and 

disposition of the Funds of the Diocese are found inconsistent to this Ordinance, such 

provisions shall be construed subject to the provisions of this Ordinance. 

4. This Ordinance shall be cited and known as the “Diocese of Armidale Investment 

Ordinance 10 of 1970-2020”. 

 

THE SCHEDULE 

 

As listed in Schedule of Investments deleting Bishopric Endowment Fund. 
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Explanatory Note – The Armidale School Ordinance 2020 

1 Summary 

The purpose of this explanatory note is to provide Synod with information about The 
Armidale School Council Ordinance 2020 (the Ordinance). 

The purpose of the Ordinance is to update and clarify the governance arrangements of 
‘The Armidale School Council’ (TASC) a body corporate established pursuant to section 4 
of the Anglican Church of Australia (Bodies Corporate) Act 1938 (NSW). 

TASC was the body historically responsible for the operation of ‘The Armidale School’ (the 
School) from the 1950s through to 2009 when the current trustee and operator of the 
School was appointed. It is important to note that TASC is no longer involved in the 
operation of the School and has been effectively dormant for the last ten years. In the 
course of joining the National Redress Scheme for Institutional Child Sexual Abuse (the 
National Redress Scheme), Diocesan Council has become aware that TASC still exists 
and has not been wound-up.  

Accordingly, Diocesan Council is concerned that TASC is clearly recognisable as being 
under the oversight of Diocesan Council and has appropriately limited membership and 
powers, consistent with TASC remaining a largely dormant entity except for administrative 
purposes (such as those associated with the National Redress Scheme).  

To achieve the above purposes, the Ordinance contains the following elements: 

• Section 2 repeals The Armidale School Ordinance 1978 – 2003 as that ordinance 
no longer reflects the current management and governance of the School; 

• Section 3 provides certain definitions for interpreting the Ordinance, including a 
definition of the School and the period to which the School came under 
governance of TASC; 

• Section 4 confirms that the object of TASC is to further the charitable purposes of 
the diocese and for no other purpose;  

• Section 5 limits the powers of TASC to solely acting in accordance with the 
directions from time to time of the Diocesan Council; 

• Section 6 provides for a Board, comprising the Bishop, the Vicar-General, any 
Assistant Bishop, the Dean and the Registrar (each ex-officio); 

• Section 7 provides for meetings of the Board to be held at such times and in such 
manner as determined by the Board; and 

• Section 8 clarifies the not-for-profit status of the Council and that it may not 
remunerate or provide any member benefits. 
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DIOCESE OF ARMIDALE 

THE ARMIDALE SCHOOL COUNCIL ORDINANCE 2020 

In order to make provision for the governance and administration of the body corporate known as 
The Armidale School Council in the Diocese of Armidale, the Synod of the Diocese in pursuance of 
the powers conferred upon it ordains and rules as follows:- 

1 Title 

This Ordinance may be cited as The Armidale School Council Ordinance 2020. 

2 Commencement 

The Armidale School Ordinance 1978 – 2003 is hereby repealed, but, subject to this 
Ordinance, the repeal thereof shall not revive any ordinance heretofore repealed nor affect 
any past operation of such ordinance or of any ordinance hereby repealed or anything 
done or commenced, or any right, privilege, obligation or liability required, accrued or 
incurred thereunder. 

3 Definitions and interpretation 

In this Ordinance, unless a contrary intention appears: 

(a) terms which are defined in section 2 of the Governance of the Diocese Ordinance 
2016-2019 have the same meaning in this ordinance;  

(b) “Council” means The Armidale School Council a body corporate established 
pursuant to section 4 of the Anglican Church of Australia (Bodies Corporate) Act 
1938 (NSW); and 

(c) “School” means the school known as The Armidale School, established to 
provide for general education and instruction in the Christian faith as taught by the 
Anglican Church of Australia and being consistent with the 39 Articles of Religion 
and the Book of Common Prayer, with respect to the period commencing upon the 
commencement of The Armidale School Ordinance 1947 and expiring upon the 
commencement of The Armidale School (Election of Separate Trustee) Ordinance 
2009. 

4 Object 

The object of the Council is to further the charitable purposes of the Diocese in connection 
with the School and for no other purpose. 

5 Powers of the Council 

The Council may only act in accordance with the express directions (from time to time) of 
the Diocesan Council and in no other manner.  

6 The Board of the Council 

The Council shall be governed by a board, comprising the Bishop, the Vicar-General, any 
Assistant Bishop, the Dean and the Registrar (each ex-officio) (together the “Board”).  

7 Meeting of the Board 

The Board may hold an ordinary meeting at such times and places as it shall determine 
and may determine its own meeting procedures. 
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8 Not-for-profit 

The Council is a not-for-profit organisation and shall not operate for the purpose of profit or 
gain to its individual members and no portion of its income, property, profits and financial 
surplus may be paid, distributed or transferred, directly, indirectly by way of dividend, 
property, bonus or otherwise by way of profit to the Board, the members or their relatives. 
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THE STANDING ORDERS OF THE 2ND SESSION OF THE 50TH SYNOD  

(THE 2020 SESSION OF SYNOD) 

Meetings of Synod 

1. The Synod shall meet during in 2020 on a single day on a date to be determined by the Bishop 

after consultation with Diocesan Council.   

 

Place of Meeting 

2. The 2020 session of synod shall meet as a series of hubs which shall be connected together 

electronically. The location of the hubs shall be determined by the Bishop, or, in the event of a 

vacancy in the See, by the Vicar-General having consulted with Diocesan Council.  The 

members of the Synod shall meet for discussion as one chamber, but either members of the 

House of Clergy or the House of Laity shall withdraw to a separate chamber for the purpose of 

discussion, at the request of three members of either House. 

 

Time of Meeting 

3. The Synod shall meet at a time ordered by the Bishop and proceed to business as soon as a 

quorum is present.  If, however, after thirty (30) minutes a quorum is not present the President 

shall adjourn the Synod to a later hour on the same day or to the next regular day of sitting. 

 

Quorum 

4. One quarter of the members of the House of Clergy and one quarter of the members of the 

House of Laity besides the President shall form a quorum. 

 

Adjournment if no Quorum 

5. The Synod may be counted at any time, on the motion of a member, and if a quorum is not 

present within fifteen (15) minutes, the President shall adjourn the Synod until a later hour on 

the same day or the next regular day of sitting. 

6. In the Committee of the Whole, the same quorum shall be required as for Synod.  If at any 

time, on any member moving that the Committee be counted, and a quorum is not present, the 

Chairman or Deputy Chairman shall report to the President, and he shall ask leave to sit again. 

 

Election and Duties of Secretaries 



7. Clerical and Lay Secretaries shall be elected by their respective Houses at the first sitting of 

each Synod.  They shall be responsible for taking the minutes of all proceedings of the Synod 

and keeping a record of all Ordinances and rules passed by the Synod.  They shall deposit the 

minutes, records or letters of the Synod with the Registrar of the Diocese at the conclusion of 

each session. 

 

The Proceedings of the 2020 Session of Synod 

8. The proceedings of the 2020 session of synod shall be preceded by prayer. 

9.  

10. If secretaries need to be elected at the 2020 session of synod, the elections should occur before 

the President’s address.  Once the President has spoken, should they be required, elections 

should be held for the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Committees. 

11. Following any elections for the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of Committees, for the 2020 

session the order of business should be as follows: 

(a) Procedural Motions; 

(b) Petitions; 

(c) Notices of Questions; 

(d) Notices of Motions; 

(e) The First Reading of Ordinances; 

(f) Call over of Motions 

(g) Tabling of Reports 

(h) Financial Report and Budget 

(i) The Second Reading of Ordinances 

(j) The Third Reading of Ordinances 

(k) Motions. 

 

General Procedures 

12. Members of Synod, when speaking, shall stand at the lectern facing the camera at their hub 

and address the President, or when in the Committee of the Whole, the Chairman or Deputy 

Chairman. 

13. No member shall be allowed, unless in the Committee of the Whole, to speak more than once 

on any question, except in explanation of a misquotation of, or misconstruction put upon his or 

her words, provided that the mover of any question, not being an amendment, shall have the 

right of reply. 

14. The President may take the same part in the discussions as other members, without leaving the 

chair. 

15. The President shall confine every member to the subject of debate, and shall call to order any 

member who shall make personal reflections upon, or impute improper motives to, another 

member, or who interrupts another when speaking. 

 



Questions 

16. Prior to the 2020 session of the Synod, questions may be submitted to the Registrar on any 

matter connected with the business of Synod. 

17. On the morning of the 2020 session of Synod up until the commencement of proceedings, 

questions on any matter connected with the business of Synod may be lodged with the 

Registrar or the Clerical and Lay Secretaries of Synod. 

18. Replies to questions shall be in writing, shall be distributed to the members of the synod, and 

shall be recorded in the minutes of the session. 

 

Petitions 

19. Petitions may be in writing or in typescript and must be duly signed. 

20. Petitions shall not be received which, in the opinion of the President, are disrespectful or 

couched in offensive language. 

21. Members of Synod presenting petitions must acquaint themselves with the content of the 

petitions, and affix their names at the beginning thereof, and shall state from whom they come.  

They may require that they be read to Synod by one of the Secretaries.  The only question 

which shall be entertained by the Synod on their presentation shall be “That the petition be 

received.” 

 

Length of Speeches 

22. On any motion that a Bill for an Ordinance be read a second time or that such a Bill be passed, 

the sponsor shall speak for not more than ten (10) minutes in support of the motion, and the 

seconder for not more than three (3) minutes.  Any other member speaking to the motion and 

the mover speaking in reply shall speak for not more than three (3) minutes. 

23. On any other motion, the mover shall speak for not more than eight (8) minutes in support of a 

motion, and seconder shall speak for not more than five (5) minutes and any other member 

speaking to the motion and the mover speaking in reply shall speak for not more than three (3) 

minutes. 

24. Those tabling reports for Synod should move a motion that that their report be “taken as read 

and received”, but should not speak to that motion unless dispensation is granted by the 

President. 

25. Except in Committee of the Whole, no member shall be allowed to speak more than once on 

the same question, except in explanation.  The mover of any motion, other than a motion for 

an amendment or a motion that the question now be put or the previous question, shall, 

however, be allowed the right of reply, and after the reply the question shall be put forthwith. 

26. A bell shall be rung when the speaker has one (1) minute left of his or her allotted time to 

speak. 

27. With the approval of Synod, the length of speeches can be varied on the motion of the 

President or the Chairman or Deputy Chairman of Committees.  

 



Motions 

Notices of Motion 

28. Prior to the 2020 session of the Synod, motions which members of Synod would like to be 

debated may be submitted to the Registrar in writing for inclusion on the notice paper. 

29. On the morning of the 2020 session of Synod up until the commencement of proceedings, 

motions in writing may be lodged with the Registrar or the Clerical and Lay Secretaries of 

Synod for inclusion on the notice paper. 

30. Each motion needs to be moved and seconded by a member of Synod. 

31. The President is able to exclude from the notice paper any motion he considers would be 

unedifying or unhelpful to debate. 

 

Procedures for the Handling of Motions 

32. Except in Committee, no motion or amendment unless seconded shall be further discussed, 

nor shall any entry thereof be made in the minutes. 

33. Any member formally seconding a motion shall not be thereby considered as having spoken to 

the question. 

34. A notice of motion that would, if passed, result in expenditure from the funds available to the 

Synod shall not be included in the notice paper for the day in the session unless it sets out, or 

is accompanied by a paper setting out: 

(a) the proposed source of funding; and 

(b) an itemised statement of expected income and expenditure that will result from the passing 

of the motion, being, if the expenditure will continue for more than one year, the expected 

income and expenditure per year. 

35. A motion may be made or question may be asked without previous notice by leave of the 

majority of members of Synod then present. 

36. Motions shall ordinarily be taken in the order in which they stand on the notice paper but the 

President can direct their taking otherwise, should it lead to the more efficient despatch of the 

business of Synod. 

37. Where in the time available Synod is not able to consider motions these might either be 

considered by Diocesan Council when it next meets or allowed to lapse. 

38. When a motion has been made and seconded, a question thereupon can be proposed by the 

President, and at any time before the close of the debate any member may move an 

amendment. 

 

Arrangements for Handling Amendments to Motions 

39. A member of Synod proposing an amendment to a motion, if the motion has been included in 

the papers that were circulated to Synod members at least thirty (30) days before the 

commencement of the Synod session, can notify the Registrar in writing (which may be by 

electronic mail) prior to 5.00pm on the fifth business day prior to the commencement of the 

Synod session. 



40. A member proposing an amendment after a session has commenced must provide it in writing 

to the Registrar and the Secretaries of Synod. 

41. After considering a proposed amendment and conferring with the proposer, the mover of the 

relevant motion should, as soon as practicable, notify the Registrar and the Secretaries of 

Synod whether the amendment is acceptable to the mover or whether it is not, and whether in 

the mover’s opinion any consequential redrafting is required. 

42. After conferring with the mover, a member proposing an amendment who decides not to 

proceed with that amendment must, as soon as practicable, notify the Registrar and the 

Secretaries of Synod of that fact. 

43. If the mover of a motion accepts any proposed amendment the mover may, with the leave of 

Synod, move the motion in that amended form incorporating any consequential amendments. 

44. The provisions in this part of the Standing Orders are subject to an overriding discretion 

vested in the President to put to the Synod any other procedure which will best work for the 

efficient despatch of the business of the Synod. 

45. Nothing in this part of the Standing Orders limits the operation of Standing Order 38. 

 

Amendment to Motions 

46. No amendment (except of a grammatical or editorial nature) shall be put from the chair unless 

it has been seconded and a copy thereof has been received by the Registrar and the Secretaries 

of Synod. 

47. Amendments are to be handled in the following manner: 

(a) an amendment may be proposed by omitting certain words, omitting certain words in order 

to insert or add other words, or by inserting or adding words; 

(b) the President shall put the question “That the amendment be agreed to”, or such other 

question or questions as in his opinion will most conveniently determine whether the 

Synod agrees to the amendment; and 

(c) when amendments have been made, the main question shall be put as amended. 

 

Motion Resolution 

48. Unless a vote by Houses is requested, a question shall be resolved by a show of hands which 

shall be counted in each hub, with the result for each hub being passed back to the President’s 

hub. The President shall state which side has the majority. 

 

Vote by Houses 

49. Where a vote of the Houses is requested by either five members of the House of Clergy or five 

members of the House of Laity, all questions shall be put by the President first to the House of 

Laity and then to the House of Clergy and no question shall be deemed to be resolved in the 

affirmative by the Synod unless it be so resolved by a vote of the majority of those present in 

each of the Houses. 

50.  



 

Withdrawal of Motions 

51. Any motion may be withdrawn by the mover unless ten (10) members object. 

 

Motions previously dealt with 

52. No subject which has been under the consideration of the Synod and disposed of shall be 

again brought forward during the session. 

53. No question shall be entertained which in the opinion of the President is substantially the same 

as one which has been resolved during the same session. 

 

Bills and Ordinances 

54. All Bills and Ordinances it is proposed that Synod consider, should, unless otherwise agreed 

by the Synod, be reviewed by Diocesan Council prior to Synod considering them. 

55. Where reviewed by Diocesan Council, copies of the Bills or Ordinances should be distributed 

to Synod members no later than thirty (30) days before the Synod session is scheduled to 

commence that is to consider them.  

56. For the 2020 one day session of synod, all three readings of Bills or Ordinances may, of 

necessity, take place on the same day. 

57. For every Bill or Ordinance the following procedure shall be observed. 

(a) It shall be presented by a promoter, who shall move, without debate, that it shall be read a 

first time, which, when seconded and carried, shall be done by the Registrar reading the 

title. 

(b) It shall be presented by the promotor, who shall move that it shall be read a second time. 

After it has been seconded, the promoter speaks to, and the seconder may speak to, the 

policy of the Bill. 

(c) Questions may be addressed to the promoter and seconder through the President.  After 

sufficient time has been given for questions, the President shall ask if any member wishes 

to speak in opposition or move an amendment. 

(d) If no one wishes to do so, the President puts the Second Reading to the vote. 

(e) If anyone wishes to speak in opposition (in the sense of opposing the Second Reading 

entirely) debate shall ensue, concluding with a reply by the promoter (and the seconder if 

he or she has not previously spoken). 

(f) The Second Reading shall be put to a vote.  If it passes, the Registrar reads the title.  If it 

fails, the Bill lapses. 

(g) If amendments are to be considered they are to be dealt with in the Committee of the 

Whole under the guidance of the Chairman of Committees or the Deputy Chairman of 

Committees, as the case may be. 

(h) When all of the proposed amendments have been addressed, the Chairman or Deputy 

Chairman, as the case may be, moves that the Synod resolve out of Committee and report 

to the President the passage of the Bill through Committee with or without amendment. 



(i) The President moves that the report of the Committee of the Whole concerning the Bill be 

adopted. 

(j) If the motion fails, the Bill lapses.  If carried, the Registrar reads the title a second time, 

and the promoter moves that the Third Reading take place at a specified time; 

(k) At the specified time the promoter shall move that the Bill be read a third time and passed. 

(l) When the motion is seconded and carried, the Registrar reads the title with its newly 

inserted annual number. 

(m) The only amendments that shall be permitted on the question that a Bill be read a third 

time shall be that the Third Reading be postponed until a certain time specified in the 

motion or that the Bill be recommitted to the Committee of the Whole for further 

consideration. 

58. No alterations shall be made in any Bill or Ordinance, except in Committee of the Whole, but 

after being reported, the whole Bill or Ordinance or any specified sections thereof may be re-

committed for that purpose, by amendment, on the proposal to adopt. 

59. In Committee of the Whole, the Chairman of Committees or the Deputy Chairman of 

Committees, as the case may be, shall have a casting vote, and otherwise shall exercise the 

same privileges as the President in Synod, and the following order shall be observed in 

considering any Bill or Ordinance: 

(a) the Title and the Preamble shall be postponed until all the sections are finally passed; 

(b) the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman, as the case may be, shall put each section by 

moving that the section as printed stand as part of the Bill; 

(c) proposed amendments shall be handled in the same manner as provided for in Standing 

Order 47; 

(d) each amended section be read over by the Chairman or Deputy Chairman, and submitted 

in its entirety to the Committee, and when a section is to be determined upon, the question 

shall be, “that the section (or section as amended) stand as part of the Bill”; 

(e) new sections may be proposed and inserted in their proper places, or may be postponed by 

the Committee until all the original sections have been considered; 

(f) when all sections have passed, it shall be possible to move “That sections (the sections to 

be enumerated) be reconsidered for the purpose of substituting  the following words (the 

words to be specified) or for the purpose of inserting or omitting” the following words; 

(g) any section of a Bill may be reconsidered more than once, if done before the Preamble and 

Title are passed, but when the Preamble and Title are passed it shall be immediately 

moved, “that the Chairman (or Deputy Chairman as the case may be) report the Bill 

with or without amendments”; and 

(h) the Schedules to be annexed to a Bill shall be considered in the same manner as the 

sections. 

60.  

 

Elections 

61.  



62. The Bishop should advise in his mandate prior to the 2020 session of Synod those positions 

for which an election is to be held. 

63. In the event a vacancy occurs after the Bishop has issued his mandate for the 2020 session of 

synod, upon the commencement of the session the Registrar shall move a procedural motion 

seeking the leave of Synod to allow an election to be held to fill the vacant position. 

64. Nominations for those positions for which a vote of the 2020 session of Synod is required 

shall be submitted by the time specified by the President. 

65. Where the number of nominations received exceeds the number of positions to be filled, 

elections should be held. 

66. Ballot papers should be prepared and made available to the members of the Synod for which 

they should sign. 

67. Each hub should appoint scrutineers to oversee the voting. 

68. A voter shall strike out the names of those candidates whom they do not wish to support and 

return the ballot paper(s) to the scrutineers. 

69. The scrutineers at each hub shall count the votes and advise the President’s hub. The President 

shall inform the Synod of the outcome of the election.  

70. In the event of a tied vote, a new ballot shall be held between those nominees so affected to 

achieve the outcome required to ensure that all the positions for which an election is required 

are filled. 

 

Other Matters 

71. Any member may move that the Synod resolve itself into a Committee of the Whole to 

consider any resolution submitted to it, and the same rules shall then apply where practicable 

as when in Committee on a Bill. 

72. Any Standing Order may be suspended on motion, by consent of a majority of the members 

present. 

73. Any Standing Order may be amended or repealed, or any new Standing Order may be passed, 

provided no less than thirty (30) days’ notice is given to an ordinary session of the Synod and 

that at least one-half of the members of each House are present and give their assent to what is 

proposed. 

74. In all cases of order which may arise but have not been provided for herein, a ruling from the 

President shall be sought, and, until the Synod shall otherwise determine, every such ruling 

shall have the same force as a Standing Order, and shall be preserved by the Secretaries in a 

record of rulings. 
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